SIMSBURY BOARD OF EDUCATION
REGULAR MEETING
February 9, 2021
BOE Conference Room
6:30 p.m.

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER

PUBLIC AUDIENCE

COMMITTEE REPORTS/BOE COMMUNICATIONS

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTIONS
A. Appointment of Director of Pupil Services EXHIBIT |
C. Approval of Minutes of February 2, 2021 Special Mtg.  EXHIBIT Il
D. Adoption of Six Year Capital Improvement Plan EXHIBIT IV
V. INFORMATION AND REPORTS
A. 2021-22 Budget EXHIBIT V
» Superintendent’s Budget
» Non-Public School Budget
B. Policy First Reading EXHIBIT VI
VI.  PUBLIC AUDIENCE
VIl.  FUTURE BUSINESS

A. Next Board Meeting, Tuesday, February 23, 2021,
Squadron Line School

Waltch Board of Education meetings LIVE and rebroadcast on Comcast Channels

95 or 1070 and on Frontier Channel 6070 as well as LIVE and on-demand at
www.simsburytv.orq.




TOWN OF SIMSBURY
BOARD OF EDUCATION

Record of Proceedings Regular Meeting

EXHIBIT II

January 26, 2021

Ms. Susan Salina called the regular meeting to order at 6:33 p.m. in the BOE
conference room.

Roll Call:
Members present: Mmes. Susan Salina, Lydia Tedone, Jen Batchelar and Sharon

_Thomas. Messrs. Todd Burrick, Jeff Tindall and Brian Watson

 Members absent: Mrs. Tara Willerup

m rnl/

= o

Lemke Assustant Supﬁrjniendent Neil Sulhvan,_Dlrector of Flnance Amy Merlwether

and Recording Secretary Katie Wilde.

PUBLIC AUDIENCE
None .

COMMITTEE REPORTS/BOE COMMUNICATIONS

Ms. Tedone reported on the upcoming NSBA symposium and CREC/CABE
legislative breakfast. Mr. Tindall noted that the 2020 increase in home sales in
Simsbury ranked 9" in the state. Ms. Lemke stated that the Curriculum Committee
will meet on February 4 for an update on the district's plans for Black History Month.

Mr. Curtis stated that budget binders will be provided to board members at the end of
the week. He reported that COVID positivity rates in CT have been below 5% over
the past week’s reporting window.

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS

A. Appointment of Tootin’ Hills Principal

Mr. Curtis introduced Anjanette Belmonte and spoke highly about her
accomplishments in the district.

Ms. Thomas: MOVE that the Board of Education appoint Anjanette Belmonte to the
position of Principal for Tootin’ Hills School with an effective date of
February 16, 2021.
Mr. Burrick: Seconded. So moved.
B. Approval of Minutes of January 12, 2021 Meeting
Mr. Tindall:  MOVE to approve the minutes of the January 12, 2021 meeting.
Ms. Tedone: Seconded. So moved.

C. Approval of Minutes of January 19, 2021 Special Meeting

Public Audience

Communications

Appointment of
Tootin’ Hills
Principal

Approval of
Minutes of
January 12,
2021 Meeting

Approval of
Minutes of

January 19,




Page 2

Ms. Batchelar:MOVE to approve the minutes of the January 19, 2021 special
meeting.

Mr. Watson: Seconded. So moved.

2021 Meeting

D. Personnel Personnel
Ms. Batchelar:MOVE that the Board of Education approve the request for non-
salaried, guaranteed leave of absence for Melissa Leonard effective
January 27, 2021 — June 30, 2021.
Ms. Thomas: Seconded. So moved.
E. Approval of Joan Sullivan Memorial Scholarship Approval of
Joan Sullivan___
Ms. Watson: MOVE that the Board of Education approve the Joan Sullivan Memorial | Memorial P
Scholarship, to be disbursed in 20271. Scholarship

Mr. Tindall: Seconded. So moved.
F. Approval of Latimer Lane PTO Donation

Ms. Thomas: MOVE that the proposed gift of $10,910 from the Latimer Lane School
PTO be approved.

Ms. Batchelar:Seconded. So moved.

INFORMATION AND REPORTS

A. Latimer Lane: Character, Community & Connection

Mr. Burrick: MOVE to amend the agenda and postpone the Latimer Lane
presentation.

Ms. Batchelar:Seconded. So moved
B. 2021-22 Budget — Enroliment & Staffing

Mr. Sullivan presented historical K-12 enroliment data, noting that over time
enrollment has declined but has become steady over the past few years. He pointed
out that the decline in 2020-21 is related to COVID. Mr. Sullivan presented a K-12
staffing history and reviewed the program enhancements during lean budgets.

Mr. Sullivan discussed elementary classroom teacher staffing. He pointed out that
102 elementary teachers were budgeted for in 2020-21 based on a projected
enroliment of 2,095. The actual enrollment for 2020-21 was 2,018 and with the need
for distance learning classes and smaller in-person classes a total of 123 teachers
were needed. With a projected elementary enrollment of 2,081 next year the
projection is back to 102 teachers.

Mr. Sullivan noted the specific elementary staffing needs in 2021-22. The goal is to
rebuild the intervention and support systems. Mr. Sullivan explained that 16.6

Latimer Lane
PTO Donation

Latimer Lane:
Character,
Community &
Connection

2021-22 Budget




Page 3

positions were repurposed last summer. This includes 4 Math Coaches, 5 Language
Arts Consultants, 6.6 Reading Intervention Teachers, and 1.0 Library Media
Specialist. These positions were reassigned as distance learning classroom
teachers. Additionally, 5 positions were added to reduce class size for COVID safety.
Mr. Sullivan stated that based on elementary enrollment projections, it is anticipated
that one additional teacher will be needed at Tariffville School, one fewer at Latimer
Lane School and 2 fewer at Central School. The teachers assigned to distance
learning should not be needed in that role unless the state requires a distance
learning option.

Mr. Sullivan reviewed the elementary staffing requests for 2021-22. Principals-have |
requested building substitutes and math tutorial support necessary coming out of the

pandemic. Principal requests put on hold include a special education teacher at
Squadron Lme full- tlme somal worker at Tarlffwlle and Latimer and a secretary for

-the Ele

- requﬁnd_the need for addltlonal mental supports commg out of the- pandemlr‘

Ms. Lemke stated that she believes the district is well staffed for mental health needs
with school psychologists, social workers, counselors and special education staff.

Ms. Thomas asked if the state has indicated what should stay and what should go
based on the pandemic. Mr. Curtis stated that the goal is to bring back the staff
members who were repurposed, noting that there may be some additional relief
provided through the ESSER funding. Ms. Tedone noted that the CT legislative
session runs through June this year.

Mr. Sullivan reported on HIMS staffing. This year an additional PE/Health position
was added for COVID safety and the recommendation is to keep this position next
year. Enrollment is anticipated to remain flat at HIMS for a third year in 2021-22, and
will have little impact on the budget.

Mr. Sullivan stated that significant staffing reductions have been taken at SHS over
the past decade. The decline in enroliment has stopped and therefore staffing will
remain flat in 2021-22. New course requests can be met with the existing staff. Mr.
Sullivan addressed summer school programming at SHS. With students struggling in
the hybrid and distance learning models, it will be necessary to offer remediation
courses and credit recovery options. These additional Department of Continuing
Education offerings will add $25,000-$30,000 to the 2021-22 budget. Ms. Thomas
asked if these programs will be offered to middle school students. Mr. Sullivan
responded that there is some remedial programming for middle school students in
the summer, noting that middle school students are in school 4 days per week.

Mr. Watson asked how our staff to student ratio at SHS compares to other districts.
Mr. Sullivan responded that the state has districts provide average class sizes in key
courses and he will look up that information.

Mr. Sullivan addressed district staffing. A Director of Equity and Access will be a new
budgeted position in 2021-22. Central Office has been restructured providing
savings with the transitions of Burke LaClair and Erin Murray and the Director of
Finance shared with the town. The addition of 3 custodians, during COVID, will be
revisited. The target with non-certified staff is a reduction of 5.0 FTE. The district
currently has 255 FTE in non-certified staffing.




Page 4

Mr. Sullivan discussed personnel budget themes. At the elementary level the intent
is to rebuild support and intervention systems. At HIMS, maintain the PE/Health
position added in 2020-21. At SHS new course offerings in computer science,
diversity studies, PE/Health, capstone and summer programming. At the district
level, the addition of a Director of Equity and Inclusion. Relative to budget
reductions, these include a 5.0 FTE reduction in non-certified staff, addressing
principal requests through repurposmg of existing staff and the restructuring of
Central Office.

Mr. Sullivan presented the 2021-22 roll forward personnel budget drivers. Mr. Curtis
| pointed out the value of the teacher’s contract is-a-1.8%-increase-which-is-the-largest
driver of the budget. He noted that the district cannot capture certified FTE next year
from an enrollment standpoint.

AT

_ cu[[ent cleanlng _protocols WI|| need to remain.in piace Mr _Sulllvan stated that the

additional 3 custodians hired are here to fill any custodial absences we have, and we
expect to reestablish our custodial substitute pool next year. In response to Mr.
Watson, Mr. Curtis confirmed the BOF budget guideline is 1.5%. Mr. Watson pointed
out that this is an approximate increase of $1 million.

C. Six Year Capital Improvement Plan 6 Year CIP

Mr. Curtis reviewed year one of the capital improvement plan. District security
improvements are a continuation of the work that began last year. The SHS
bleachers and press box is a resubmittal of last year's request. The Latimer Lane
School renovation and HIMS additional projects are a result of the Facilities Master
Plan Phase 1 recommendations. It may be necessary to decouple the two projects,
with Latimer Lane School as the number one priority. Mr. Curtis stated that Ms.
Meriwether will work with us on the debt service modeling for this project. We wiill
offer tours of Latimer Lane School to BOS and BOF members. Mr. Curtis stated it is
important that we work closely with the BOS as they incorporate our plan into their
plan for submission to the BOF.

D. 2019-20 Audit Report. 2019- Audit
Report

Ms. Meriwether reported that revenues exceeded budget by $1.2 million. Relative to
the BOE, the town received an additional $65,000 in ECS grant funding, investment
income was in excess of $250,000, and there was additional revenue from the non-
public school budget in the amount of $50,000. On the town side, increased
revenues resulted from building fees and property taxes collected over budget.

Ms. Meriwether stated that relative to expenditures, the $298,775 is mostly related to
BOE savings of $266,308 due to the closing of schools as a result of COVID. She
noted that on a GAAP basis, excess of revenues over expenditures was over $5
million. The GAAP basis is what the rating agencies care about, which is important
relative to the Latimer Lane School project. The town started the year with a fund
balance of $17,109,547 and ended the year with a fund balance of $18,904,280.
Once non-spendable (prepaid expenditures), committed (non-lapsing) and assigned
expenditures are taken into account the unassigned general fund for July 1, 2020 of
$17,775,774. This is 17% of operating expenditures. Most AAA bond rated

communities maintain a balance of 15.5%.



Page 5

Ms. Meriwether addressed the management comments. The accounting procedures
manual is a holdover from last year regarding the development of a comprehensive
accounting procedures manual for the town and BOE finance offices. Once the
implementation of the new Munis accounting system is in place, procedures for the
town and BOE will mirror each other, and one manual for both entities will be created.
The auditor also suggesting a fraud risk assessment. The funding request for the
assessment was made during the FY 20 budget process in year three of the six year
capital plan for the town.

Quarterly

E ()narh:rly Rudgpf Annlyqiq

Budget Analysis

Ms. Meriwether pointed out that the district is receiving an increase in the Excess
Cost Grant of $283,472. These additional funds, as well as some additional grants,

_add.e_d_to_the_quar:terly_r_ep.o.r.t._'I'_o_d.ate.,_the_di.tic.t_h_as_been_awa[d_ d $476,055 in

funds and is expecting another allocation soon.

Ms. Meriwether addressed the increased percentage of expenditures as compared to
last year. Last year's number reflects 9 payrolls for the period and this year's number
reflects 10 payrolls for the period. Ms. Meriwether addressed individual expenditure
fluctuations compared to last year at this time. Due to the uptick in expenditures, a
budget freeze is being put in place through the end of March.

PUBLIC AUDIENCE
None

ADJOURNMENT
Ms. Tedone: MOVE to adjourn the meeting at 8:14 p.m.

Mr. Tindall: Seconded. So moved.

Katie Wilde
Recording Secretary

Jennifer Batchelar
Secretary

Public Audience

Adjournment




TOWN OF SIMSBURY
BOARD OF EDUCATION

Record of Proceedings Special Meeting

EXHIBIT I

February 2, 2021

Mrs. Susan Salina called the virtual meeting to order at 6:33 p.m.

Roll Call:
Members present: Mmes. Susan Salina, Tara Willerup, Lydia Tedone and Jen
Batchelar. Messrs. Todd Burrick and Brian Watson. Jeff Tindall joined the meeting at

6:41 p.m.

Members absent: Mmes. Jen Batchelar and Sharon Thomas

Also present: Superintendent Matt Curtis.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Executive :

Ms. Willerup: MOVE that the Board of Education enter executive session to interview
an administrative candidate and include Mr. Curtis.

Ms. Tedone: Seconded. So moved.

ADJOURNMENT
Ms. Willerup: MOVE to adjourn the meeting at 7:03 p.m.

Mr. Watson: Seconded. So moved.

Jennifer Batchelar Katie Wilde
Secretary Recording Secretary

Session

Adjournment




EXHIBIT IV

MEMORANDUM TO: Members of the Board of Education

FROM: Matthew Curtis
Superintendent of Schools
DATE: February 9, 2021
RE: Approval of 6 Year Capital Improvement Plan

The Board of Education reviewed the 6 year capital improvement plan at their budget

workshop on February 6, 2021. The resulting plan will be provided during this evening's

meating
ooty

Additional meetings with Town of Simsbury staff will be needed to attempt to make all
projects fit under the BOF debt guideline.

With the Town Charter requirement of February 15 as the Board of Education
submission deadline of our Six Year Capital Improvement Plan to the Town Manager
and Board of Selectman, the administration requests action on the following motion:

“MOVE that the Board of Education Six Year Capital Improvement Plan for the period
2022-2027 be adopted.”



EXHIBIT V

MEMORANDUM TO: Members of the Board of Education

FROM: Matthew T. Curtis, Superintendent of Schools
DATE: February 9, 2021
RE: Superintendent’s 2021-22 Budget i

Tonight | will present the proposed 2021-22 Superintendent's Budget. The
presentation will address the budget context, balancing fiscal reality and a vision
for continuous imp_rg/__ement, financial drivers of the 2021-22 budget, COVID

AVNRAano - a¥ls arva = T Ao olore e
V v U

At the meeting you will receive information for your Budget Development Binders
relative to the 2021-22 non-public school budget, as well as this evening's budget
presentation.

Adoption of the 2021-22 public school and non-public school budget will be
brought forward to the board at the February 23, 2021 meeting.

MTC:kdw



EXHIBIT VI

MEMORANDUM TO: Members of the Board of Education

FROM: Matthew T. Curtis, Superintendent of Schools

DATE: February 9, 2021

RE: Policy First Reading —

The Policy Committee recently reviewed revised policies as part of the 1000
Community Relations, 4000 Personnel and 5000 Student series. The major

¢ 1100.6 — Sexual Offenders on School Property - Revision

* 4100 — Personnel Organization — Revision

e 4209 — Sex Discrimination and Sexual Harassment in the Workplace (Title
IX) — Revision

e 5145.51 — Sexual Discrimination and Harassment — Students - Revision

Copies of the recommended policies have been provided to you this evening for
your review. Following any discussion, these policies will be brought forward for
a second reading at the next Board of Education meeting.

MTC:kdw



1100.6

Visitors to School Buildings

The Board of Education encourages visits by citizens, taxpayers,
and parents to all school buildings if they have legitimate business
in the schools, such as scheduled meetings, attendance at pre-
planned school events, or other invitations from school staff. Upon
arrival, all visitors must comply with any and all applicable building
security procedures, including but not limited to utilizing security
buzzers for access, complying with requests for photo identification,
complying with background checks that utilize available public

databases, reporting directly to and signing in and out at the
visitors"reception-area of the school office, prominently displaying——
visitors' badges or other identification required for visitors to the

schools buildings, limiting access to those areas of the buildings o

Educational Observations — In order to promote a safe and

productive educational environment for all students and staff, the
Board of Education requires all visitors, including parents, who wish
to observe specific classroom practice to receive approval from the
school Principal or his/her designee before being permitted to
conduct such observations. The Board of Education reserves the
right to limit visits in accordance with administrative regulations.

Revised March XX, 2021



SIMSBURY BOARD OF EDUCATION
POLICY SERIES 4000, PERSONNEL

4100 PERSONNEL ORGANIZATION
All positions authorized by the Board of Education shall be identified in
an organizational chart prepared by the Superintendent. A manual of
job descriptions shall be prepared to identify the specific functions of
all positions. Such manual will be available for inspection and located
at the Central Office.

The Superintendent may recommend changes in personnel
organization, and submit these changes to the Board for consideration

and approval AII such recommendatlons must be |dent|r|ed on fhe

Revised March XX, 2021



120z Aenuer

HEIS [BipoisnD

umis
[BUOISS3J0Id B [BOU3ID

siewadg
d

— HEIS payag

ﬁ

sjq¥fed

sfediould Juessissy

sjediouud Buipping

oot ==

_

1sAlBU!

v

ebpies

JOJBUIRI0OD
swouag/lioiked

JOJBUIPI00D)
20YJO ssaulsng

10323210 #3uBULy

uoster] 8210y vedo

JOIUM WBIS/IBISBLUGIAN

Rumag jo Jopanq

ABojouysal ¥
AuNpISRYU Jo JoaIg

uopieanp3 Buinupuod

Jowswpedag

S80IMRS
UOHUINN o Jopauig

Jojeuipiood
uofepodsuel | fuswijoiug

1012UIPI00D
$80UN0SeY UBWINH

uonensiuwpYy Jo}

1wepusjupadng JuEsISSY

3d 9 IS By

Joj siosinedng -y

ABojouyda )
[euonaNIISU} Jo JoPala

saaiaeg idnd Jo Jopang

wnnowng
Kejuawel3 jo sopang

Bujween) g Buiyses) soj

uspusjuuedng JueISISSY

_

[ |
SN Hew

S|00Yy2g jo jJuspuajuuadng

)

uonesnp3 jo pieog

s|jooyos
dllgnd Aingswig




Series 4000
Personnel

POLICY REGARDING PROHIBITION OF SEX DISCRIMINATION AND
SEXUAL HARASSMENT IN THE WORKPLACE (PERSONNEL)

It is the policy of the Simsbury Board of Education (the “Board”) for the Simsbury Public
Schools that any form of sex discrimination or sexual harassment is prohibited in the

Board’s education programs and activities, whether by students, Board employees or third
parties subject to substantial control by the Board. It is the policy of the Board to maintain

a working environment free from harassment, insults or intimidation on the basis of an

employee's sex and free from discrimination based on sex. Verbalerphysicaleonductby-a
= P ~ revirle N ks ~ r 1 C a ~» pofban 4 =Y H
. 50 : u

The Board does not discriminate on the basis of sex in the education programs or activities
that it operates and the Board is required by Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972
and its implementing regulations (“Title IX™), Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
(“Title VII"), and Connecticut law not to discriminate in such a manner. Students, Board
employees and third parties are required to adhere to a standard of conduct that is respectful
of the rights of all parties. Any employee or student who engages in conduct prohibited by
this Policy shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination or
expulsion, respectively. Third parties who engage in conduct prohibited by this Policy
shall be subject to other sanctions, which may include exclusion from Board property
and/or activities. Individuals who engage in acts of sex discrimination or sexual
harassment may also be subject to civil and criminal penalties.

For conduct to violate this-PelieyTitle IX, the conduct must have occurred in an education
program or activity of the Board; the conduct must have occurred within the United States
of America; and the complainant must be participating in or attempting to participate in the
education program or activity of the Board. Conduct that does not meet these requirements
still may constitute a violation of Title VII. Connecticut law, and/or another Board policy.

The Superintendent of Schools shall develop Administrative Regulations implementing
this Policy and in accordance with Title IX, Title VII, and Connecticut law (the
“Administrative Regulations™).

Sex discrimination occurs when an employer refuses to hire, disciplines or discharges any
individual, or otherwise discriminates against an individual with respect to his or her
compensation, terms, conditions, or privileges of employment on the basis of the
individual’s sex. Sex discrimination also occurs when a person, because of the person’s
sex, is denied participation in or the benefits of any education program or activity receiving
federal financial assistance.




Sexual harassment_under Title IX means conduct on the basis of sex that satisfies one or
more of the following:

(1) An employee of the Board conditioning the provision of an aid, benefit, or
service of the Board on an individual’s participation in unwelcome sexual conduct
(i.e., quid pro quo);

(2) Unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe,
pervasive, and objectively offensive that 1t effectively denies a person equal access
— Rt e

(3) “Sexual assault” as defined in 20 U.S.C. 1092(H)(6)(A)(v), “dating violence” as
defined in 34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(10), “domestic violence” as defined in 34 U.S.C.

Sexual harassment under Title VII and Connecticut law means unwelcome sexual
advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual
nature when:

(1) Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or

condition of an individual's employment;

(2) Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis

for employment decisions affecting such individual: or

(3) Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an
individual's work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive
working environment.

Reporting Sex Discrimination or Sexual Harassment

[t is the express policy of the Board to encourage victims of sex discrimination and/or
sexual harassment to report such claims. Employees are encouraged to report complaints of
sex discrimination and/or sexual harassment promptly in accordance with the appropriate
process set forth in the Administrative Regulations. The Board directs its employees to
respond to such complaints in a prompt and equitable manner.

Violations of this Policy by employees will not be permitted and may result in discipline up
to and including discharge from employment. Individuals who engage in acts of sex
discrimination or sexual harassment may also be subject to civil and criminal penalties.
Retaliation against any employee for complaining about sex discrimination or sexual
harassment is prohibited under this Policy and illegal under state and federal law.

Any Board employee with notice of sex discrimination and/or sexual harassment
allegations shall immediately report such information to the building principal and/or the



Title IX Coordinator, or if the employee does not work in a school building, to the Title IX
Coordinator.

The Simsbury Public Schools administration (the “Administration’) shall provide training
to Title IX Coordinator(s), investigators, decision-makers, and any person who facilitates
an informal resolution process (as set forth in the Administrative Regulations)—Steh,
which training willshall include-information-en, but need not be limited to, the definition of
sex discrimination and sexual harassment, the scope of the Board’s education program and
activity, how to conduct an investigation and implement the grievance process, and how to

serve impartially, including by avoiding prejudgment of the facts at issue, contlicts of
interest,-and-bias.- The Administration shall make the training materials-used-to-provide

these trainings publicly available on the Board’s website. The Administration shall also
periodically provide training to all Board employees on the topic of sex discrimination and

sexual harassment under Title IX, Title VII, and Connecticut [aw, which shall include but

noft-he mited-to hen repnotd a
O G0 C S D&

made. The Administration shall distribute this Policy and the Administrative Regulations
to employees, union representatives, students, parents and legal guardians and make the
Policy and the Administrative Regulations available on the Board’s website to promote an
environment free of sex discrimination and sexual harassment.

The Board’s Title IX Coordinator is the Assistant Superintendent for Administration. Any
individual may make a report of sex discrimination and/or sexual harassment directly to the
Title [X Coordinator using any one, or multiple, of the following points of contact:

Neil Sullivan

Assistant Superintendent for Administration
Simsbury Public Schools

933 Hopmeadow Street

Simsbury, CT 06060
nsullivan@simsburyschools.net
860-651-3361

Any individual may also make a report of sexual harassment and/or sex discrimination to
the U.S. Department of Education: Office for Civil Rights, Boston Office, U.S.
Department of Education, 8" F loor, 5 Post Office Square, Boston, MA 02109-3921
(Telephone: 617-289-0111).

Employees may also make a report of sexual harassment and/or sex discrimination to the
Connecticut Commission on Human Rights and Opportunities, 450 Columbus Boulevard,
Hartford, CT 06103-1835 (Telephone: 860-514-3400).

Legal References:
Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title VII, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e-2(a).
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission Policy Guidance on
Current Issues of Sexual Harassment (N-915.050), March 19, 1990.




Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. § 1681,

et seq.
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 34 CFR § 106, et

seq.
Meritor Savings Bank, FSB v. Vinson, 477 U.S. 57 (1986)

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 46a-54 - Commission powers Connecticut
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 46a-60 - Discriminatory employment practices
prohibited.

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 46a-81c - Sexual orientation discrimination:
Employment

gender identity or expression or marital status prohibited
Conn. Agencies Regs. §§ 46a-54-200 through § 46a-54-207

Revised March XX, 2021



Series 4000
Personnel

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING
THE PROHIBITION OF SEX DISCRIMINATION AND SEXUAL HARASSMENT
(PERSONNEL)

[t is the policy of the Simsbury Board of Education (the “Board”) for the Simsbury Public Schools

that any form of sex discrimination or sexual harassment is prohibited in the Board’s education
———————programs-and-aetivities, whether by students, Board employees or third parties subjectto—————

substantial control by the Board. Students, District employees and third parties are expected to

adhere to a standard of conduct that is respectful of the rights of students, District employees, and .

third parties. It is the policy of the Board to maintain a working environment free from harassment,

Verbal or physical conduct by a supervisor or co-worker relating to an employee's sex that has the

effect of creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment, unreasonably interfering

with the employee's work performance, or adversely affecting the employee's employment

opportunities is prohibited.

Any employee or student who engages in conduct prohibited by the Board’s Policy regarding the
Prohibition of Sex Discrimination and Sexual Harassment (Personnel) shall be subject to
disciplinary action. Any third party who engages in conduct prohibited by the Board’s Policy
regarding the Prohibition of Sex Discrimination and Sexual Harassment (Personnel) shall be
subject to remedial measures, which may include exclusion from school property.

Sex discrimination occurs when a person, because of the person’s sex, is denied participation in
or the benefits of any education program or activity receiving federal financial assistance.

Sexual harassment under Title X means conduct on the basis of sex that satisfies one or more of
the following:
(1) An employee of the Board conditioning the provision of an aid, benefit, or service of the
Board on an individual’s participation in unwelcome sexual conduct (i.e., guid pro quo);
(2) Unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive, and
objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person equal access to the District’s education
programs or activities; or
(3) “Sexual assault™ as defined in 20 U.S.C. 1092(£)(6)(A)(v), “dating violence” as defined in
34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(10), “domestic violence” as defined in 34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(8), or
“stalking” as defined in 34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(30). These definitions can be found in Appendix
A of these Administrative Regulations.

Sexual harassment under Title VII and Connecticut law means unwelcome sexual advances.

requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when:

(1) Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an
individual's employment:




(2) Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for
employment decisions affecting such individual: or

(3) Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's
work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working environment.

Although not an exhaustive list, the following are other examples of conduct prohibited by the
Board’s Policy regarding the Prohibition of Sex Discrimination and Sexual Harassment
(Personnel):

1. Unwelcome sexual advances from a co-worker or supervisor, such asunwanted

hugs, touches, or kisses;

2. Unwelcome attention of a sexual nature, such as degrading, suggestive or lewd
e — —— b of mqu’:‘ (’\PFRIC‘DC" = e ——————
3. Dirty jokes, derogatory or pornographic posters, cartoons or drawings;
4. The threat or suggestion that continued employment advancement, assignment or
earnings depend on whether or not the employee will submit to or tolerate
harassment;
5. Circulating, showing, or exchanging emails, text messages, digital images or

websites of a sexual nature;

6. Using computer systems, including email, instant messaging, text messaging,
blogging or the use of social networking websites, or other forms of electronic
communications, to engage in any conduct prohibited by the Board’s Policy
regarding the Prohibition of Sex Discrimination and Sexual Harassment
(Personnel).

NOTICE OF THE TITLE IX COORDINATOR

The District’s Title [X Coordinator is the Assistant Superintendent for Administration. Any
individual may make a report of sex discrimination and/or sexual harassment directly to the Title
IX Coordinator using any one, or multiple, of the following points of contact:

Neil Sullivan

Assistant Superintendent for Administration
Simsbury Public Schools

933 Hopmeadow Street

Simsbury, CT 06060
nsullivan(@simsburyschools.net
860-651-3361




The Title IX Coordinator manages the District’s compliance with Title IX, Title VII and

Connecticut law with respect to sexual harassment and/or sex discrimination and is an available

resource to anyone seeking information or wishing to file a formal complaint of same. When a
student, District employee, or other participant in the District’s programs and activities feels that
such person has been subjected to discrimination on the basis of sex in any District program or
activity, including without limitation being subjected to sexual harassment, such person may
contact the Title IX Coordinator or utilize the Title IX, Title VII and Connecticut law grievance
systems set forth herein to bring concerns forward for the purpose of obtaining a prompt and
equitable resolution.

~—— EXPLANATION OF COMPLAINT PROCESS AND PROCEDURE

The federal regulations implementing Title IX require the adoption and publication of two separate
grievance systems: a grievance process for comp

sexual harassment. Accordingly, the Administration will process any complaints of sex
discrimination involving allegations of sexual harassment, as defined above, pursuant to the
grievance process set forth in Section [ of these regulations. The Administration will process any
complaints of sex discrimination that are not sexual harassment pursuant to the grievance
procedures set forth in Section II of these regulations.

The District will keep confidential the identity of any individual who has a made a report or
complaint of sex discrimination, including any individual who has made a report or filed a formal
complaint of sexual harassment, any complainant, any individual who has been reported to be the
perpetrator of sex discrimination, any respondent, and any witness, except as may be permitted by
the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), or as required by law, or to carry out the
purposes of these Administrative Regulations, including the conduct of any investigation, hearing,
or judicial proceeding arising from these Administrative Regulations.

The obligation to comply with Title IX is not obviated or alleviated by the FERPA.

SECTION I. GRIEVANCE PROCESS FOR COMPLAINTS OF SEXUAL
HARASSMENT

A. Definitions

e Bias occurs when it is proven that the Title IX Coordinator, investigator(s),
and/or decision-maker(s) demonstrate actual bias, rather than the appearance
of bias. Actual bias includes, but is not limited to, demonstrated personal
animus against the respondent or the complainant and/or prejudgment of the
facts at issue in the investigation.

o Complainant means an individual who is alleged to be the victim of conduct that could
constitute sexual harassment.



e A conflict of interest occurs when it is proven that the Title IX Coordinator,
investigator(s), and/or decision-maker(s) have personal, financial and/or familial interests
that affected the outcome of the investigation.

e For purposes of investigations and complaints of sexual harassment, education program
or activity includes locations, events, or circumstances over which the Board exercises
substantial control over both the respondent and the context in which the sexual harassment
OCCurs.

Employee means (A) a teacher, substifufe feacher, school adminisfrator, school

4supﬁmmendem -guidance counselor, school counselor, psychologist, social worker, nurse,

physician, school paraprofessional or coach employed by the Board or working in a public
elementary, middle or high school; or (B) any other individual who, in the performance of

hls or her duues has regular contact w1th students and who prov1des services to Or on

contract w1th the Board

¢ Formal complaint means a document filed by a complainant or signed by the Title IX
Coordinator alleging sexual harassment against a respondent and requesting that the
Administration investigate the allegation of sexual harassment. A “document filed by a
complainant” means a document or electronic submission that contains the complainant’s
physical or digital signature, or otherwise indicates that the complainant is the person filing
the formal complaint.

e Respondent means an individual who has been alleged to be the perpetrator of conduct
that could constitute sexual harassment.

e Supportive measures means non-disciplinary, non-punitive individualized services
offered as appropriate, as reasonably available, and without fee or charge to the
complainant or the respondent before or after the filing of a formal complaint or where no
formal complaint has been filed. Such measures are designed to restore or preserve equal
access to the District’s education program or activity without unreasonably burdening the
other party, including measures designed to protect the safety of all parties or the District’s
educational environment, or deter sexual harassment. Supportive measures may include
counseling, extensions of deadlines or other course-related adjustments, modifications of
work or class schedules, mutual restrictions on contact between the parties, increased
security and monitoring, and other similar measures.

B. Reporting Sexual Harassment

1. Ttisthe express policy of the Board to encourage victims of sexual harassment to report
such claims. Any person may report sexual harassment (whether or not the person
reporting is the person alleged to be the victim of conduct that could constitute sexual
harassment), in person, by mail, by telephone, or by electronic mail, using the contact
information listed for the Title IX Coordinator. If the District receives notice of sexual
harassment or alleged sexual harassment against a person in the District’s education
program or activity, the Title [X Coordinator or designee will promptly contact the



complainant to discuss the availability of supportive measures, whether or not the
complainant has filed a formal complaint, and will consider the complainant’s wishes
with respect to such measures. If the complainant has yet to file a formal complaint, the
Title IX Coordinator or designee will explain to the complainant the process for doing
S0.

2. The District will treat complainants and respondents equitably. A respondent is
presumed not responsible for the alleged conduct and a determination regarding
responsibility will be made at the conclusion of the grievance process if a formal
complaint 1s Tiled. Nothing 1in this-ikegutattonthese Administrative kegulations shall
preclude the District from placing an employee respondent on administrative leave
during the pendency of the grievance process. Further, nothing in these Administrative
Regulations shall limit or preclude the District from removing a respondent from the

District’s education program or activity on an emergency basis, provided that the

) nder e o e c
a Biafs - ala ] a 3 afa K-aha alala 1N nd

immediate threat to the physical health or safety of any student or other individual
arising from the allegations of sexual harassment justifies removal. If a respondent is
removed on an emergency basis, the District shall provide the respondent with notice
and an opportunity to challenge the decision immediately following the removal.

= Sae s SIS el = cl

C. Formal Complaint and Grievance Process

1. A formal complaint may be filed with the Title IX Coordinator in person, by mail, or by
electronic mail, by using the contact information listed for the Title IX Coordinator. At
the time of filing a formal complaint, a complainant must be participating in or
attempting to participate in the District’s education programs or activity. A formal
complaint may be signed by the Title IX Coordinator. If the complaint being filed is
against the Title IX Coordinator, the formal complaint should be filed with the
Superintendent. If the formal complaint being filed is against the Superintendent, the
formal complaint should be filed with the Board Chair, who will then retain an
independent investigator to investigate the matter.

2. The District may consolidate formal complaints as to allegations of sexual harassment
against more than one respondent, or by more than one complainant against one or
more respondents, or by one party against the other party, where the allegations of
sexual harassment arise out of the same facts or circumstances. If possible, formal
complaints should be filed within ten (10) school days of the alleged occurrence in
order to facilitate the prompt and equitable resolution of such claims. The District will
attempt to complete the formal grievance process within ninety (90) school days of
receiving a complaint. This timeframe may be temporarily delayed or extended in
accordance with Subsection G of this Section.

3. Upon receipt of a formal complaint, if the Title IX Coordinator or designee has not
already discussed the availability of supportive measures with the complainant, the
Title IX Coordinator or designee will promptly contact the complainant and-respendent
sepatately-to discuss the availability of such measures and consider the complainant’s
wishes with respect to them. The Title [X Coordinator or designee may also contact the




respondent, separately from the complainant, to discuss the availability of supportive
measures for the respondent. The District will maintain as confidential any supportive
measures provided to the complainant or respondent, to the extent that maintaining
such confidentiality would not impair the ability of the District to provide supportive
measures.

4. Within ten (10) school days of receiving a formal complaint, the District will provide
the known parties with written notice of the allegations potentially constituting sexual
harassment and a copy of this grievance process. The written notice must also include

the following:

1. The identities of the parties involved in the incident, if known;
ii. The conduct allegedly constituting sexual harassment as defined above;

iil. The date and the location of the alleged incident, if known;

conduct and that a determination regarding responsibility is made at the
conclusion of the grievance process;

V. A statement that the parties may have an advisor of their choice, who may
be, but is not required to be, an attorney, and may inspect and review
evidence; and

Vi, A statement of any provision in the District’s policies that prohibits
knowingly making false statements or knowingly submitting false
information during the grievance process.

If, in the course of an investigation, the District decides to investigate allegations about the
complainant or respondent that are not included in the written notice, the District must
provide notice of the additional allegations to the parties whose identities are known.

The parties may have an advisor of their choice accompany them during any grievance
proceeding at which the party’s attendance is required. The District may, in its discretion,
establish certain restrictions regarding the extent to which an advisor may participate in the
proceedings. If any such restrictions are established, they will be applied equally to all
parties.

The Title IX Coordinator will, as applicable, promptly commence an investigation of the
formal complaint, designate a school administrator to promptly investigate the formal
complaint, or dismiss the formal complaint in accordance with Subsection F of this
Section. The standard of evidence to be used to determine responsibility is the
preponderance of the evidence standard (i.e., more likely than not). The burden of proof
and the burden of gathering evidence sufficient to reach a determination regarding
responsibility rest on the District and not on the parties.

The parties will be given an equal opportunity to discuss the allegations under investigation
with the investigator(s) and are permitted to gather and present relevant evidence. This
opportunity includes presenting witnesses, including fact and expert witnesses, and other
inculpatory and exculpatory evidence. Credibility determinations will not be based on a



person’s status as a complainant, respondent, or witness, The District will provide to a
arty whose participation is invited or expected (including a witness) written notice of the

date, time, location, participants, and purpose of all hearings (if applicable), investigative
interviews, or other meetings, with sufficient time for the party to prepare to participate.

Both parties will be given an equal opportunity to inspect and review any evidence
obtained as part of the investigation that is directly related to the allegations raised in the
formal complaint, including the evidence upon which the District does not intend to rely in
reaching a determination regarding responsibility and inculpatory or exculpatory evidence

whether obtained from a party or other source, so that each party can meaningfully respond

——————— W iheevidencepriortothecorchsiorof theimrertipation: Piortorompletionofthe———————

investigative report, the District will send to each party and the party’s advisor, if any, the
evidence subject to inspection and review in an electronic format or a hard copy, and the

10.

11.

parties will have ten (10) school days to submit a written response, which the

Paragraph 9 of this section.

The investigator(s) will create an investigative report that fairly summarizes relevant
evidence. The investigator(s) will send the investigative report, in an electronic format or
hard copy, to each party and to each party’s advisor for their review and written response at
least ten (10) school days prior to the time a determination regarding responsibility is
made.

The Superintendent will appoint a decision-maker(s), who shall be a District employee or
third-party contractor and who shall be someone other than the Title IX Coordinator or
investigator(s). If the complaint filed is against the Superintendent, the Board Chair shall
appoint the decision-maker, who shall be someone other than the Title IX Coordinator or
investigator(s). The investigator(s) and the decision-maker(s) shall not discuss the
investigation’s facts and/or determination while the complaint is pending. The
decision-maker(s) will afford each party the opportunity to submit written, relevant
questions that a party wants asked of any party or witness, provide each party with the
answers, and allow for additional, limited follow-up questions from each party. Questions
and evidence about the complainant’s sexual predisposition or prior sexual behavior are
not relevant, unless such questions and evidence about the complainant’s prior sexual
behavior are offered to prove that someone other than the respondent committed the
conduct alleged by the complainant, or if the questions and evidence concern specific
incidents of the complainant’s prior sexual behavior with respect to the respondent and are
offered to prove consent. The decision-maker(s) will explain to the party proposing the
questions any decisions to exclude a question as not relevant.

The decision-maker(s) will issue a written determination regarding responsibility. The
written determination will include: (1) identification of the allegations potentially
constituting sexual harassment; (2) a description of the procedural steps taken from the
receipt of the formal complaint through the determination, including any notifications to
the parties, interviews with parties and witnesses, site visits, methods used to gather other
evidence, and hearings held; (3) findings of fact supporting the determination; (4)



conclusions regarding the application of the District’s code of conduct to the facts; (5) a
statement of, and rationale for, the result as to each allegation, including a determination
regarding responsibility, any disciplinary sanctions the District will impose on the
respondent, and whether remedies designed to restore or preserve equal access to the
District’s education program or activity will be provided by the District to the complainant;
and (6) the District’s procedures and permissible bases for the complainant and respondent

to appeal. If the respondent is found responsible for violating the Board’s Policy regarding
the Prohibition of Sex Discrimination and Sexual Harassment (Personnel), the written
determination shall indicate whether the respondent engaged in sexual harassment as i

defined by the Board’s Policy and these Administrative Regulations. The written
= Jeiomipaiorewiitbeprovidshichntirpatissmuitaeaml——o———>—-——JT """

12. Student respondents found responsible for violating the Board’s Policy regarding the
Prohibition of Sex Discrimination and Sexual Harassment (Personnel) may be subject to

=4 9,
violating the Board’s Policy regarding the Prohibition of Sex Discrimination and Sexual
Harassment (Personnel) may be subject to discipline up to and including termination of
employment. Other respondents may be subject to exclusion from the District’s programs,
activities and/or property. In appropriate circumstances, the District may make a criminal
referral. Remedies will be designed to restore or preserve equal access to the District’s
education programs or activities.

13. After receiving notification of the decision-maker(s)’ decision, or after receiving
notification that the District dismissed a formal complaint or any allegation therein, both
complainant and respondent may avail themselves of the appeal process set forth in Section
E of this Regulation.

D. Informal Resolution

At any time prior to reaching a determination regarding responsibility, but only after the filing of'a
tormal complaint, the District may suggest to the parties the possibility of facilitating an informal
resolution process, such as mediation, to resolve the formal complaint without the need for a full

investigation and adjudication. If it is determined that an informal resolution may be appropriate,
the Title IX Coordinator or designee will consult with the parties.

Prior to facilitating an informal resolution to a formal complaint, the Title IX Coordinator or
designee will provide the parties with written notice disclosing the sexual harassment allegations,
the requirements of an informal resolution process, and any consequences from participating in
the informal resolution process. Upon receipt of this document, complainants and respondents
have five (5) school days to determine whether they consent to participation in the informal
resolution. The District must obtain voluntary, written consent to the informal resolution process
from both parties.

Prior to agreeing to any resolution, any party has the right to withdraw from the informal
resolution process and resume the grievance process with respect to the formal complaint. If a
satisfactory resolution is reached through this informal process, the matter will be considered
resolved. If these efforts are unsuccessful, the formal grievance process will continue.



Nothing in this section precludes an employee from filing a complaint of retaliation for matters
related to an informal resolution, nor does it preclude either party from filing complaints based on
conduct that is alleged to occur following the District’s facilitation of the informal resolution.

An informal resolution is not permitted to resolve allegations that an employee sexually harassed
a student.

E. Appeal Process

the District dlsrmssed a formal complaint or any allegation therein, both comolalnant and =

respondent have five (5) school days to submit a formal letter of appeal to the Title IX Coordinator
specifying the grounds upon which the appeal is based.

Appealswill be-appropriate-only inthe-following circumstances:—

» new evidence that was not reasonably available at the time the determination regarding
responsibility or dismissal was made, that could affect the outcome of the matter;

« procedural irregularity that affected the outcome of the matter;

o the Title IX Coordinator, investigator(s), and/or decision-maker(s) had a conflict of interest or
bias for or against complainants or respondents generally or the individual complainant or
respondent that affected the outcome of the matter. A conflict of interest or bias does not exist
solely because the Title IX Coordinator, investigators(s), and/or decision-maker(s) previously
worked with or disciplined the complainant or respondent.

The District will provide the other party with written notice of such appeal. Both parties will then
have an opportunity to submit a written statement in support of, or challenging, the outcome. Such
written statement must be submitted ten (10) school days after receiving written notice of the
appeal. Upon receipt of an appeal, the Superintendent shall appoint a decision-maker(s) for the
appeal, who shall be someone other than the Title IX Coordinator, investigator(s), or initial
decision-maker(s). The decision-maker(s) for the appeal, in their discretion, will determine the
appropriate procedure for the appeal. After considering the parties’ written statements, the
decision-maker(s) for the appeal will provide a written decision. If it is found that one of the bases
for appeal exists, the decision-maker(s) for the appeal will issue an appropriate remedy.

Supportive measures for either or both parties may be continued throughout the appeal process.

F. Dismissal of a Formal Complaint

The Title IX Coordinator shall dismiss any forrnal complamt that under Title IX, 1) would not

constitute sexual harassment as defined i : ' sunder Title IX even if
proved, 2) did not occur in the District’s educatlon program or actmty, or 3) did not occur against
a person in the United States. Such dismissal does not preclude action under another Board policy.

The District may dismiss a formal complaint or any allegations therein, if at any time during the
investigation or hearing a complainant notifies the Title IX Coordinator in writing that 1) the
complainant would like to withdraw the formal complaint or any allegations therein; 2) the



respondent is no longer enrolled or employed in the District; or 3) specific circumstances prevent
the District from gathering evidence sufficient to reach a determination as to the formal complaint
or allegations therein.

Upon a dismissal, the District will promptly and simultaneously send written notice of the

dismissal and reason(s) therefor to each party. Either party can appeal from the District’s dismissal
of a formal complaint or any allegations therein using the appeals procedure.

In the event a formal complaint is dismissed prior to the issuance of a decision under Title IX, the

Title IX Coordinator shall determine if the allegations of sexual hamssment shall proceed through

sex discrimination for consideration as to whether the allegations constitute sexual harassment

under Title VII or Connecticut law.

Discipline policy, Code of Conduct for students/or and employees, or any other applicable rule,
policy, and/or collective bargaining agreement.

(. Miscellaneous

1. Any timeframe set forth in these Administrative Regulations may be temporarily delayed
or extended for good cause. Good cause may include, but is not limited to, considerations
such as the absence of a party, a party’s advisor, or a witness; concurrent law enforcement
activity; concurrent activity by the Department of Children and Families; or the need for
language assistance or accommodation of disabilities. If any timeframe is altered on a
showing of good cause, written notice will be provided to each party with the reasons for
the action.

2. If a sexual harassment complaint raises a concern about discrimination or harassment on
the basis of any other legally protected classification (such as race, religion, color, national
origin, age, or disability), the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall make a referral to
other appropriate personnel within the District (e.g. Section 504 Coordinator, etc.), so as to
ensure that any such investigation complies with the requirements of policies regarding
nondiscrimination.

3. If the sexual harassment complaint results in reasonable cause to suspect or believe that a
child has been abused or neglected, has had a nonaccidental physical injury, or injury
which is at variance with the history given of such injury, is placed at imminent risk of
serious harm, or that a student has been sexually assaulted by a school employee, then, the
person to whom the complaint is given or who receives such information shall report such
matters in accordance with the Board's policy on the Reports of Suspected Child Abuse or
Neglect of Children.

4. Retaliation against any individual who complains pursuant to the Board’s Policy regarding
the Prohibition of Sex Discrimination and Sexual Harassment (Personnel) and these
Administrative Regulations is strictly prohibited. The District will take actions designed to




prevent retaliation as a result of filing a complaint. Complaints alleging retaliation may be
filed according to the grievance procedures for sex discrimination described herein.

5. The District will maintain for a period of seven (7) years records of:

i. Each sexual harassment investigation including any determination regarding
responsibility, any disciplinary sanctions imposed on the respondent, and any
remedies provided to the complainant designed to restore or preserve equal
access to the Board’s education program or activity;

ii. Any appeal and the result therefrom;
iii.  Any informal resolution and the result therefrom; and
v All'material used to-train Title X Coordinators, investigators, decision-makers,——— =
and any person who facilitates an informal resolution process. The Board will
make these training materials publicly available on its website.

activity of the Board and for any report or formal complaint of sexual harassment the
District will create and maintain for a period of seven (7) years, records of any actions,
including any supportive measures, taken in response to a report or formal complaint of
sexual harassment. The District will document the basis for its conclusion that its response
was not deliberately indifferent, and document that it has taken measures designed to
restore or preserve equal access to the Board’s education program or activity. If the
District does not provide a complainant with supportive measures, then the District will
document the reasons why such a response was not clearly unreasonable in light of the
known circumstances.

SECTION II. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES FOR CLAIMS OF SEX DISCRIMINATION
(OTHER THAN SEXUAL HARASSMENT UNDER TITLE 1X)

A. Definitions

e Complainant means an individual who is alleged to be the victim of conduct that could
constitute sex discrimination.

e Respondent means an individual who has been reported to be the perpetrator of conduct
that could constitute sex discrimination.

B. Reporting Sex Discrimination Other than Sexual Harassment under Title [X

It is the express policy of the Board to encourage victims of sex discrimination to report
such claims. Any person may report sex discrimination (whether or not the person
reporting is the person alleged to be the victim of conduct that could constitute sex
discrimination), in person, by mail, by telephone, or by electronic mail, using the contact
information listed for the Title IX Coordinator. If the District receives notice of sex
discrimination or alleged sex discrimination against a person in the District’s education
program or activity, the Title [X Coordinator or designee will promptly notify the
complainant of the grievance process. The District will treat complainants and respondents
equitably during the grievance process. Sexual harassment is a form of sex discrimination,



and any incident of sexual harassment_under Title [X, as defined above, sheuldshall be
handled pursuant to Section [ of these Administrative Regulations. Any allegations of
sexual harassment under Title VII or Connecticut law, as defined above, shall be handled

pursuant to this Section II of these Administrative Regulations.

C. Grievance Procedures

1. As soon as an employee feels that he or she has been subjected to sex discrimination other

than sexual harassment as defined under Title IX (including, without limitation, sexual

harassment under Title VII or Connecticut law), he/she should make a written complaint to
- theTitle IX Coordinator or to the building principal, or his/her designee. The employee

will be provided a copy of the Board’s policy and Administrative Regulations and made

aware of his or her rights. Preferably, complaints should be filed within ten (10) school

days of the alleged occurrence. Timely reporting of complaints facilitates the investigation

b 55 (S [P <) = P D]
AdITCSUTHHUIT O T SUCITCOTTTPTATIILS
2. The complaint should state the:

i.  Name of the complainant;
ii.  Date of the complaint;
iti.  Date(s) of the alleged discrimination;
iv.  Name(s) of the discriminator(s);
v.  Location where such discrimination occurred;
vi.  Names of any witness(es) to the discrimination;
vil.  Detailed statement of the circumstances constituting the alleged discrimination;
and
viii.  Remedy requested.

3. Any employee who makes an oral complaint of sex discrimination to any of the
above-mentioned personnel will be provided a copy of these Administrative Regulations
and will be requested to make a written complaint pursuant to the above procedure.

4. All complaints are to be forwarded immediately to the building principal or designee
unless that individual is the subject of the complaint, in which case the complaint should be
forwarded directly to the Superintendent of Schools or his/her designee. In addition, a
copy of any complaint filed under this pelieyPolicy shall be forwarded to the Title IX
Coordinator. If the complaint being filed is against the Title X Coordinator, the complaint
should be filed with the Superintendent. If the complaint being filed is against the
Superintendent, the complaint should be filed with the Board Chair, who will then retain an
independent investigator to investigate the matter.

5. The Title IX Coordinator or designee shall investigate all complaints of sexualsex
discrimination against an employee, regardless of whether the conduct occurred on or
off-school grounds. Complaints will be investigated promptly within the timeframes
identified below. Timeframes may be extended as needed given the complexity of the
investigation, availability of individuals with relevant information, and other extenuating
circumstances. The investigation shall be conducted discreetly, maintaining confidentiality
insofar as possible while still conducting an effective and thorough investigation.



6. Any employee who makes a complaint shall be notified of the District’s intent to
investigate the complaint. In the event the employee requests confidentiality or that an
investigation not be conducted, the District will take reasonable steps to investigate and
respond to the complaint to the extent possible, given the request for confidentiality or that
the District not investigate the complaint. If the employee insists that his/her information
not be shared with the alleged discriminator(s), the employee will be informed that the
District’s ability to investigate and/or take corrective action may be limited.

7. Upon receipt of a sex dlscr1m1nat10n complamt the TltIe IX Coordmator shall either

admmlstrator to promptly 1nvest1gate the complamt The T1tle IX Coordmator or designee

shall:

i. offer to meet with the complainant and respondent (if applicable) separately
w1th1n ten (10) school days to dlSCU.SS the nature of the complamt 1dent1fy

relevant 1nformat10n and obtam any relevant documents the complamant and
respondent may have;

ii. provide the complainant and respondent (if applicable) with a copy of the
Board’s sex discrimination policy and accompanying regulations;

iii. consider whether any interim measures may be appropriate to protect the
complainant or respondent (if applicable), pending the outcome of the
investigation;

iv. conduct an investigation that is adequate, reliable, and impartial. Investigate
the factual basis of the complaint, including, as applicable, conducting
interviews with individuals deemed relevant to the complaint;

v. consider whether alleged sex discrimination has created a hostile work
environment, including consideration of the effects of off-campus conduct on
the school;

vi. communicate the outcome of the investigation in writing to the complainant, to
the respondent, and to any individual properly identified as a party to the
complaint (to the extent permitted by state and federal confidentiality
requirements), within ninety (90) school days from the date the complaint was
received by the Superintendent’s office. The investigator may extend this
deadline for no more than fifteen (15) additional school days if needed to
complete the investigation. The complainant and respondent (if applicable)
shall be notified of such extension. The written notice shall include a finding
whether the complaint was substantiated and if so, shall identify, to the extent
possible, how the District will remedy the discrimination, adhering to the
requirements of state and federal law; and

vii. when sex discrimination has been found, take steps that are reasonably
calculated to end the discrimination, take corrective and/or disciplinary action



8.

aimed at preventing the recurrence of the discrimination, as deemed appropriate
by the Superintendent or his/her designee, and take steps to remedy the effects
of the sex discrimination.

If a complaint is made during summer recess, the complaint will be reviewed and
addressed as quickly as possible given the availability of staff and/or other individuals who
may have information relevant to the complaint. If fixed timeframes cannot be met, the
complainant and respondent will receive notice and interim measures may be implemented
as necessary.

If the complainant or respondent (if applicable) is dissatisfied with the findings of the

investigation, he or she may file a written appeal within five (5) school days to the Title IX
to the Superintendent of Schools,

vy - o ) av= =
i Eivaaes —COOTOTT G O1—CCs AT Tl 2o o

collected by the Title IX Coordinator or designee ogether_with the recommended

disposition of the complaint to determine whether the alleged conduct constitutes sex
discrimination. The Title IX Coordinator or Superintendent of Schools may determine if
further action and/or investigation is warranted. After completing this review, the Title IX
Coordinator or Superintendent of Schools shall respond to the complainant and respondent
(if applicable), in writing, within fifteen (15) school days following the receipt of the
written request for review.

D. Miscellaneous

1.

If a sexualsex discrimination complaint raises a concern about discrimination or
harassment on the basis of any other legally protected classification (such as race, religion,
color, national origin, age, or disability), the Title IX Coordinator or designee shall make a
referral to other appropriate personnel within the District (e.g. Section 504 Coordinator,
etc.), so as to ensure that any such investigation complies with the requirements of policies
regarding nondiscrimination.

[f the sexualsex discrimination complaint results in reasonable cause to suspect or believe
that a child has been abused or neglected, has had a nonaccidental physical injury, or injury
which is at variance with the history given of such injury, is placed at imminent risk of
serious harm, or that a student has been sexually assaulted by a school employee, then, the
person to whom the complaint is given or who receives such information shall report such
matters in accordance with the Board's policy on the Reports of Suspected Child Abuse or
Neglect of Children.

Retaliation against any individual who complains pursuant to the Board’s Policy regarding
the Prohibition of Sex Discrimination and Sexual Harassment (Personnel) and these
Administrative Regulations is strictly prohibited. The District will take actions designed to
prevent retaliation as a result of filing a complaint. Complaints alleging retaliation may be
filed according to the grievance procedures for sex discrimination described herein.



Section I11. Further Reporting

At any time, a complainant alleging sex discrimination or sexual harassment may also file a formal
complaint with the Office for Civil Rights, Boston Office, U.S. Department of Education, g
Floor, 5 Post Office Square, Boston, MA 02109-3921 (Telephone (617) 289-0111).

Employees may also make a report of sexual harassment and/or sex discrimination to the
Connecticut Commission on Human Rights and Opportunities, 450 Columbus Boulevard,
Hartford, CT 06103-1835 (Telephone: 860-514-3400).

-~ Copiesof these Administrative Regulations will be distributed to-all employees.




Appendix A

Sexual Assault: An offense classified as forcible or nonforeible sex offense under the uniform
crime reporting system of the Federal Bureau of Investigation.

Rape—(Except Statutory Rape) The carnal knowledge of a person, without the consent of
the victim, including instances where the victim is incapable of giving consent because of
the person’s age or because of the person’s temporary or permanent mental or physical
incapacity.

Sodomy—~Oral or anal sexual intercourse with another person, without the consent of the
victim, including instances where the victim is incapable of giving consent because of the
person’s age or because of the person’s temporary or permanent mental or physical

incapacity.

Sexual Assault With An Object—To use an object or instrument to unlawfully penetrate,
however slightly, the genital or anal opening of the body of another person, without the
consent of the victim, including instances where the victim is incapable of giving consent
because of the person’s age or because of the person’s temporary or permanent mental or
physical incapacity.

Fondling—The touching of the private body parts of another person for the purpose of
sexual gratification without the consent of the victim, including instances where the victim
is incapable of giving consent because of the person’s age or because of the person’s
temporary or permanent mental or physical incapacity.

Incest—Nonforcible sexual intercourse between persons who are related to each other
within the degrees wherein marriage is prohibited by law.

Statutory Rape—Nonforcible sexual intercourse with a person who is under the statutory
age of consent.

Dating Violence: Violence committed by a person who is or has been in a social relationship of a
romantic or intimate nature with the victim; and where the existence of such a relationship shall be
determined based on a consideration of the length of the relationship, the type of relationship, and
the frequency of interaction between the persons involved in the relationship.

Domestic Violence: Includes felony or misdemeanor crimes of violence committed by a current or
former spouse or intimate partner of the victim, by a person with whom the victim shares a child in
common, by a person who is cohabitating with or has cohabitated with the victim as a spouse or
intimate partner, by a person similarly situated to a spouse of the victim under the domestic or
family violence laws of the jurisdiction receiving grant monies, or by any other person against an
adult or youth victim who is protected from that person’s acts under the domestic or family
violence laws of the jurisdiction.



Stalking: Engaging in a course of conduct directed at a specific person that would cause a
reasonable person to fear for the person’s safety or the safety of others; or suffer substantial
emotional distress.

Affirmative Consent means an active, clear and voluntary agreement by a person to engage in
sexual activity with another person.

For the purposes of an investigation conducted pursuant to these Administrative Regulations, the
following principles shall be applied in determining whether consent for sexual activity was
given and/or sustained:

A. Affirmative consent is the standard used in determining whether consent to engage in
sexual activity was given by all persons who engaged in the sexual activity. .

e e e o o

person engaged in the sexual activity.

C.  Itisthe responsibility of each person to ensure that he or she has the affirmative consent
of all persons engaged in the sexual activity to engage in the sexual activity and that the
affirmative consent is sustained throughout the sexual activity.

D. It shall not be a valid excuse to an alleged lack of affirmative consent that the
respondent to the alleged violation believed that the complainant consented to the sexual
activity:

(i) because the respondent was intoxicated or reckless or failed to take reasonable
steps to ascertain whether the complainant affirmatively consented, or

(i)  if the respondent knew or should have known that the complainant was unable to
consent because such individual was unconscious, asleep, unable to communicate due to a
mental or physical condition, unable to consent due to the age of the individual or the age
difference between the individual and the respondent, or incapacitated due to the influence
of drugs, alcohol or medication.

E.  The existence of a past or current dating or sexual relationship between the complainant
and the respondent, in and of itself, shall not be determinative of a finding of affirmative
consent.



Series 4000
Personnel

COMPLAINT FORM REGARDING SEXUAL HARASSMENT _UNDER TITLE IX
(PERSONNEL)

This complaint form should be used for complaints of sexual harassment as defined on page 1 of the Board’s
Administrative Regulations regarding the Prohibition of Sex Discrimination and Sexual Harassment (Personnel)

Name of the complainant

) N £ 4] Temtprde
alc Ul Ui UUIL]PlalllL

Date of the alleged sexual harassment

Name or names of the sexual harasser(s)

Location where such sexual harassment occurred

Name(s) of any witness(es) to the sexual harassment

Detailed statement of the circumstances constituting the alleged sexual harassment

Remedy requested

Signature of Complainant or Title IX Coordinator:




Series 4000
Personnel

COMPLAINT FORM REGARDING SEX DISCRIMINATION (OTHER THAN SEXUAL
HARASSMENT UNDER TITLE IX) (PERSONNEL)

This complaint form should be used for complaints of sex discrimination as defined on page 1 of the Board’s
Administrative Regulations regarding the Prohibition of Sex Discrimination and Sexual Harassment (Personnel)

Name of the complainant

pate oI the complaint

Date of the alleged sex discrimination

Name or names of the sex discriminator(s)

Location where such sex discrimination occurred

Name(s) of any witness(es) to the sex discrimination

Detailed statement of the circumstances constituting the alleged sex discrimination

Remedy requested

Signature:




SAMPLE WRITTEN NOTICE FOR FORMAL COMPLAINTS OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT

NOTICE OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT ALLEGATIONS UNDER TITLE IX

In accordance with the Board’s Policy and Administrative Regulations regarding the Prohibition
of Sex Discrimination and Sexual Harassment (Personnel), a formal complaint of sexual
harassment has been filed with the Title IX Coordinator.

Identities of the parties involved, if known:

(Complainant(s))

(Respondent(s))

The conduct allegedly constituting sexual harassment:

The date and the location of the alleged incident, if known:

The Title IX Coordinator or designee will contact the parties regarding the next step in the
grievance process. Questions can be directed to the Title IX Coordinator: [INSERT CONTACT
INFORMATION FOR TITLE IX COORDINATOR]

The respondent is presumed not responsible for the alleged conduct. A determination regarding
responsibility is made at the conclusion of the grievance process.

All parties involved may have an advisor of their choice who may be, but it not required to be, an
attorney. This advisor may inspect and review evidence as permitted by the Board’s
Administrative Regulations regarding the Prohibition of Sex Discrimination and Sexual
Harassment (Personnel).

Any employee who knowingly makes false statements or knowing submits false information
during this grievance process is subject to discipline, up to and including termination.
Additionally, it is a violation of the Board’s Student Discipline Policy to lie to school officials or
otherwise engage in dishonest behavior, which includes knowingly making false statements or
knowingly submitting false information during the grievance process. Any student who
knowingly makes false statements or knowingly submits false information during this grievance
process will be subject to sanctions pursuant to the Board’s Student Discipline Policy.

A copy of the Board’s Policy and Administrative Regulations regarding the Prohibition of
Sex Discrimination and Sexual Harassment (Personnel) is included with this notice.



SAMPLE WRITTEN NOTICE FOR THE INFORMAL RESOLUTION PROCESS FOR
SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINTS

NOTICE OF INFORMAL RESOLUTION PROCESS FOR SEXUAL HARASSMENT
COMPLAINTS UNDER TITLE IX

In accordance with the Board’s Policy and Administrative Regulations regarding the Prohibition
of Sex Discrimination and Sexual Harassment (Personnel), a formal complaint of sexual
harassment has been filed with the Title IX Coordinator. The Board has an informal resolution

process to promptly and equitably resolve such complaints using mediation or alternatively, could
~be restorative justice. This informal resolution process will only be utilized if both the

Complainant and Respondent agree to do so.

The conduct allegedly constituting sexual harassment:

If both parties agree to the informal resolution process, it shall preclude the parties from resuming
a formal complaint arising out of the same allegations. However, either party may withdraw from
the informal resolution process at any time before agreeing to a resolution and resume the
grievance process for formal complaints of sexual harassment.

If both parties agree to a resolution, that resolution is binding upon both parties and cannot be
changed or appealed.

The District will maintain for a period of seven (7) years records of the informal resolution process
and results therefrom.

I voluntarily consent to the informal resolution process:

Complainant Date

Respondent Date



Series 5000
Students

POLICY REGARDING TITLE IX OF THE EDUCATION AMENDMENTS OF 1972 -
PROHIBITION OF SEX DISCRIMINATION AND SEXUAL HARASSMENT
(STUDENTS)

It is the policy of the Simsbury Board of Education (the “Board”) for the Simsbury Public Schools
that any form of sex dIScnmmauon or sexual harassment is prohlblted in the Board s education

substantlal control by the Board. The Board does not discriminate on the basis of sex in the
education programs or activities that it operates and the Board is required by Title IX of the
Education Amendments of 1972 and its implementing regulations (“Title IX”).and Connecticut

Taw not o discriminate in such a manner. Students, DUEI‘U_El’TTplDYBES and thitd parties are required

: = f'students; employees-and third —
parties. Any student or employee who engages in conduct prohibited by this pelieyPolicy shall be
subject to disciplinary action, up to and including expulsion or termination, respectively.

For conduct to violate thisPelieyTitle IX, the conduct must have occurred in an education program
or activity of the Board; the conduct must have occurred within the United States of America; and
the complainant must be participating in or attempting to participate in the education program or
activity of the Board. Conduct that does not meet these requirements still may constitute a
violation of Connecticut law or another Board policy.

The Superintendent of Schools shall develop Administrative Regulations implementing this Policy
and in accordance with Title IX_and Connecticut law (the “Administrative Regulations”).

Sex discrimination occurs when a person, because of the person’s sex, is denied participation in
or the benefits of any education program or activity receiving federal financial assistance.

Sexual harassment under Title IX means conduct on the basis of sex that satisfies one or more of
the following:

(1) An employee of the Board conditioning the provision of an aid, benefit, or service of
the Board on an individual’s participation in unwelcome sexual conduct (i.e., quid pro

quo);

(2) Unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive, and
objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person equal access to the Board’s
education programs or activities; or

(3) “Sexual assault” as defined in 20 U.S.C. 1092(f)(6)(A)(v), “dating violence” as defined
in 34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(10), “domestic violence” as defined in 34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(8), or
“stalking” as defined in 34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(30).

Sexual harassment under Connecticut law means conduct in a school setting that 1) is sexual in
nature: 2) is unwelcome: and 3) denies or limits a student’s ability to participate in or benefit from




a school’s educational program. Sexual harassment can be verbal, nonverbal or physical. Sexual
violence is a form of sexual harassment.

Reporting Sex Discrimination or Sexual Harassment

[t is the express policy of the Board to encourage victims of sex discrimination and/or sexual
harassment to report such claims. Students are encouraged to report complaints of sex
discrimination and/or sexual harassment promptly in accordance with the appropriate process set
forth in the Administrative Regulations. The Board directs its employees to respond to such

complaints in a prompt and equitable manner. The Board further directs 1ts employees to maintain
confidentiality to the extent appropriate and not tolerate any reprisals or retaliation that occur as a
result of the good faith reporting of charges of sex discrimination and/or sexual harassment. Any
such reprisals or retaliation will result in disciplinary action against the retaliator, up to and

including expulsion or termination as appropriate.

Any Board employee with notice of sex discrimination and/or sexual harassment allegations shall
immediately report such information to the building principal and/or the Title IX Coordinator, or if
the employee does not work in a school building, to the Title IX Coordinator.

The Simsbury Public Schools administration (the “Administration”) shall provide training to Title
X Coordinator(s), investigators, decision-makers, and any person who facilitates an informal
resolution process (as set forth in the Administrative Regulations)-en, which training shall include
but need not be limited to, the definitions of sex discrimination and sexual harassment, the scope of
the Board’s education program and activity, how to conduct an investigation and grievance
process, and how to serve impartially, including by avoiding prejudgment of the facts at issue,
conflicts of interest, and bias. The Administration shall make the training materials used to provide
these trainings publicly available on the Board’s website. The Administration shall also
periodically provide training to all Board employees on the topic of sex discrimination and sexual
harassment under Title [X and Connecticut law, which shall include but not be limited to when
reports of sex discrimination and/or sexual harassment must be made. The Administration shall
distribute this Policy and the Administrative Regulations to staff, students and parents and legal
guardians and make the Policy and the Administrative Regulations available on the Board’s
website to promote an environment free of sex discrimination and sexual harassment.

The Board’s Title IX Coordinator is the Assistant Superintendent for Administration. Any
individual may make a report of sex discrimination and/or sexual harassment directly to the Title
IX Coordinator using any one, or multiple, of the following points of contact:

Neil Sullivan

Assistant Superintendent for Administration
Simsbury Public Schools

933 Hopmeadow Street

Simsbury, CT 06070
nsullivan(@simsburyschools.net
860-651-3361




Any individual may also make a report of sexual harassment and/or sex discrimination to the U.S.
Department of Education: Office for Civil Rights, Boston Office, U.S. Department of Education,
8" Floor, 5 Post Office Square, Boston, MA 02109-3921 (Telephone (617) 289-0111).

Legal References: Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. § 1681, et seq.
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 34 C.F.R § 106.1, et seq.
Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District, 524 U.S. 274 (1998)

Davis v. Monroe County Board of Education, 526 U.S. 629 (1999)
~ Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-15¢ - Discrimination in public schools prohibited.

Revised March XX, 2021




Series 5000
Students

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING

TITLE IX OF THE EDUCATION AMENDMENTS OF 1972 - PROHIBITION OF SEX
DISCRIMINATION AND SEXUAL HARASSMENT (STUDENTS)

It is the policy of the Simsbury Board of Education (the “Board”) for the Simsbury Public Schools

(“the District™) that any form of sex discrimination or sexual harassment is prohibited, whether by
students, District employees or third parties subject to substantial control by the Board. Students,
District employees and third parties are expected to adhere to a standard of conduct that is

respectful of the rights of students, District employees, and third parties. Any student or employee

who engages in conduct prohibited by the Board’s Policy regarding Title X of the Education

iaal
Fap S oy = - v v .

be subject to disciplinary action. Any third party who engages in conduct prohibited by the
Board’s Policy regarding Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972-Prohibition of Sex
Discrimination and Sexual Harassment (Students) shall be subject to remedial measures, which
may include exclusion from school property.

Sex discrimination occurs when a person, because of the person’s sex, is denied participation in
or the benefits of any education program or activity receiving federal financial assistance.

Sexual harassment.under Title IX means conduct on the basis of sex that satisfies one or more of
the following:

(1) An employee of the Board conditioning the provision of an aid, benefit, or service of the
Board on an individual’s participation in unwelcome sexual conduct (i.e., quid pro quo);

(2) Unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive, and
objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person equal access to the District’s education
programs or activities; or

(3) “Sexual assault” as defined in 20 U.S.C. 1092(f)(6)(A)(v), “dating violence™ as defined in
34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(10), “domestic violence™ as defined in 34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(8), or
“stalking” as defined in 34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(30). These definitions can be found in Appendix
A of these Administrative Regulations.

Sexual harassment under Connecticut law means conduct in a school setting that 1) is sexual in

nature; 2) is unwelcome; and 3) denies or limits a student’s ability to participate in or benefit from

a school’s educational program. Sexual harassment can be verbal, nonverbal or physical. Sexual

violence is a form of sexual harassment.




Although not an exhaustive list, the following are other examples of conduct prohibited by the
Board’s Policy regarding Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972-Prohibition of Sex
Discrimination and Sexual Harassment (Students):

1. Statements or other conduct indicating that a student’s submission to, or rejection
of, sexual overtures or advances will affect the student’s grades and/or other
academic progress.

2 Unwelcome attention and/or advances of a sexual nature, including verbal

comments, sexual invitations, leering and physical touching.

3. Display of sexually suggestive objects, or use of sexually suggestive or obscene
remarks, invitations, letters, emails, text messages, notes, slurs, jokes, pictures,

cartoons, epithets or gestures.

4. Touching of a sexual nature or telling sexual or dirty jokes.
5 Transmitting or displaying emails or websites of a sexual nature.
6. Using computer systems, including email, instant messaging, text messaging,

blogging or the use of social networking websites, or other forms of electronic
communications, to engage in any conduct prohibited by the Board’s Policy
regarding Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972-Prohibition of Sex
Discrimination and Sexual Harassment (Students).

NOTICE OF THE TITLE IX COORDINATOR

The District’s Title [X Coordinator is the Assistant Superintendent for Administration. Any
individual may make a report of sex discrimination and/or sexual harassment directly to the Title
IX Coordinator using any one, or multiple, of the following points of contact:

Neil Sullivan

Assistant Superintendent for Administration
Simsbury Public Schools

933 Hopmeadow Street

Simsbury, CT 06070
nsullivanf@simsburyschools.net
860-651-3361

The Title IX Coordinator manages the District’s compliance with Title X and Connecticut law
regarding sexual harassment and sex discrimination and is an available resource to anyone seeking
information or wishing to file a formal complaint of same. When a student, District employee, or
other participant in the District’s programs and activities feels that such person has been subjected
to discrimination on the basis of sex in any District program or activity, including without
limitation being subjected to sexual harassment, such person may contact the Title IX Coordinator




or utilize the Title IX grievance systems set forth herein to bring concerns forward for the purpose
of obtaining a prompt and equitable resolution.

EXPLANATION OF COMPLAINT PROCESS AND PROCEDURE

The federal regulations implementing Title IX require the adoption and publication of two separate
grievance systems: a grievance process for complaints of sex discrimination involving allegations
of sexual harassment and grievance procedures for complaints of sex discrimination that are not
sexual harassment. Accordingly, the Administration will process any complaints of sex
discrimination involving allegations of sexual harassment, as defined above, pursuant to the
grievance process set forth in Section I of these regulations. The Administration will process any
complaints of sex discrimination that are not sexual harassment pursuant to the grievance
procedures set forth in Section II of these regulations.

) T T e — e
complaint of sex discrimination, including any individual who has made a report or filed a formal
complaint of sexual harassment, any complainant, any individual who has been reported to be the
perpetrator of sex discrimination, any respondent, and any witness, except as may be permitted by
the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), or as required by law, or to carry out the
purposes of these Administrative Regulations, including the conduct of any investigation, hearing,

or judicial proceeding arising from these Administrative Regulations.

The obligation to comply with Title IX is not obviated or alleviated by the FERPA.

SECTION 1.  GRIEVANCE PROCESS FOR COMPLAINTS OF SEXUAL
HARASSMENT

A. Definitions

e Bias occurs when it is proven that the Title [X Coordinator, investigator(s),
and/or decision-maker(s) demonstrate actual bias, rather than the appearance
of bias. Actual bias includes, but is not limited to, demonstrated personal
animus against the respondent or the complainant and/or prejudgment of the
facts at issue in the investigation.

e Complainant means an individual who is alleged to be the victim of conduct that could
constitute sexual harassment.

e A conflict of interest occurs when it is proven that the Title IX Coordinator,
investigator(s), and/or decision-maker(s) have personal, financial and/or familial interests
that affected the outcome of the investigation.

e For purposes of investigations and complaints of sexual harassment, education program
or activity includes locations, events, or circumstances over which the Board exercises
substantial control over both the respondent and the context in which the sexual harassment
occurs.



¢ Employee means (A) a teacher, substitute teacher, school administrator, school
superintendent, guidance counselor, school counselor, psychologist, social worker, nurse,
physician, school paraprofessional or coach employed by the Board or working in a public
elementary, middle or high school; or (B) any other individual who, in the performance of
his or her duties, has regular contact with students and who provides services to or on
behalf of students enrolled in a public elementary, middle or high school, pursuant to a
contract with the Board.

e Formal complaint means a document filed by a complainant or signed by the Title IX

Coordinator alleging sexual harassment against a respondent and requesting that the
Administration investigate the allegation of sexual harassment. A “document filed by a
complainant” means a document or electronic submission that contains the complainant’s
physical or digital signature, or otherwise indicates that the complainant is the person filing

the formal complaint.

* Respondent means an individual who has been alleged to be the perpetrator of conduct
that could constitute sexual harassment.

e Supportive measures means non-disciplinary, non-punitive individualized services
offered as appropriate, as reasonably available, and without fee or charge to the
complainant or the respondent before or after the filing of a formal complaint or where no
formal complaint has been filed. Such measures are designed to restore or preserve equal
access to the District’s education program or activity without unreasonably burdening the
other party, including measures designed to protect the safety of all parties or the District’s
educational environment, or deter sexual harassment. Supportive measures may include
counseling, extensions of deadlines or other course-related adjustments, modifications of
work or class schedules, mutual restrictions on contact between the parties, increased
security and monitoring, and other similar measures.

B. Reporting Sexual Harassment

1. Itisthe express policy of the Board to encourage victims of sexual harassment to report
such claims. Any person may report sexual harassment (whether or not the person
reporting is the person alleged to be the victim of conduct that could constitute sexual
harassment), in person, by mail, by telephone, or by electronic mail, using the contact
information listed for the Title IX Coordinator. If the District receives notice of sexual
harassment or alleged sexual harassment against a student in the District’s education
program or activity, the Title [X Coordinator or designee will promptly contact the
complainant to discuss the availability of supportive measures, whether or not the
complainant has filed a formal complaint, and will consider the complainant’s wishes
with respect to such measures. If the complainant has yet to file a formal complaint, the
Title IX Coordinator or designee will explain to the complainant the process for doing
s0.

2. The District will treat complainants and respondents equitably. A respondent is
presumed not responsible for the alleged conduct and a determination regarding
responsibility will be made at the conclusion of the grievance process if a formal

s B



complaint is filed. Nothing in this Regulation shall limit or preclude the District from
removing a respondent from the District’s education program or activity on an
emergency basis, provided that the District undertakes an individualized safety and risk
analysis, and determines that an immediate threat to the physical health or safety of any
student or other individual arising from the allegations of sexual harassment justifies
removal. If a respondent is removed on an emergency basis, the District shall provide
the respondent with notice and an opportunity to challenge the decision immediately
following the removal.

C. Formal Complaint and Grievance Process

1. A formal complaint may be filed with the Title IX Coordinator in person, by mail, or by
electronic mail, by using the contact information listed for the Title IX Coordinator. At

the tlme of filing a formal complamt a complamant must be partlclpatmg in or

complamt may be 51gned by the Title IX Coordmator If the complamt bemg ﬁled is
against the Title IX Coordinator, the formal complaint should be filed with the
Superintendent. If the formal complaint being filed is against the Superintendent, the
formal complaint should be filed with the Board Chair, who will then retain an
independent investigator to investigate the matter.

2. The District may consolidate formal complaints as to allegations of sexual harassment
against more than one respondent, or by more than one complainant against one or
more respondents, or by one party against the other party, where the allegations of
sexual harassment arise out of the same facts or circumstances. If possible, formal
complaints should be filed within ten (10) school days of the alleged occurrence in
order to facilitate the prompt and equitable resolution of such claims. The District will
attempt to complete the formal grievance process within ninety (90) school days of
receiving a complaint. This timeframe may be temporarily delayed or extended in
accordance with Subsection G of this Section.

3. Upon receipt of a formal complaint, if the Title IX Coordinator or designee has not
already discussed the availability of supportive measures with the complainant, the
Title IX Coordinator or designee will promptly contact the complainant and respondent
separately to discuss the availability of such measures and consider the complainant’s
wishes with respect to them. The District will maintain as confidential any supportive
measures provided to the complainant or respondent, to the extent that maintaining
such confidentiality would not impair the ability of the District to provide supportive
measures.

4. Within ten (10) school days of receiving a formal complaint, the District will provide
the known parties with written notice of the allegations potentially constituting sexual
harassment and a copy of this grievance process. The written notice must also include
the following:

I. The identities of the parties involved in the incident, if known;



1. The conduct allegedly constituting sexual harassment as defined above;

iii. The date and the location of the alleged incident, if known;

iv. A statement that the respondent is presumed not responsible for the alleged
conduct and that a determination regarding responsibility is made at the
conclusion of the grievance process;

V. A statement that the parties may have an advisor of their choice, who may
be, but is not required to be, an attorney, and may inspect and review
evidence; and

Vi. A statement of any provision in the District’s Student Discipline Policy or

any other policy that prohibits knowingly making false statements of
knowingly submitting false information during the grievance process.

If, in the course of an investigation, the District decides to investigate allegations about the

complainant or respondent that are not included in the written notice, the District must

The parties may have an advisor of their choice accompany them during any grievance
proceeding at which the party’s attendance is required. The District may, in its discretion,
establish certain restrictions regarding the extent to which an advisor may participate in the
proceedings. If any such restrictions are established, they will be applied equally to all
parties.

The Title IX Coordinator will, as applicable, promptly commence an investigation of the
formal complaint, designate a school administrator to promptly investigate the formal
complaint, or dismiss the formal complaint in accordance with Subsection F of this
Section. The standard of evidence to be used to determine responsibility is the
preponderance of the evidence standard (i.e., more likely than not). The burden of proof
and the burden of gathering evidence sufficient to reach a determination regarding
responsibility rest on the District and not on the parties.

The parties will be given an equal opportunity to discuss the allegations under investigation
with the investigator(s) and are permitted to gather and present relevant evidence. This
opportunity includes presenting witnesses, including fact and expert witnesses, and other
inculpatory and exculpatory evidence. Credibility determinations will not be based on a
person’s status as a complainant, respondent, or witness. The District will provide to a
arty whose participation is invited or expected (including a witness), written notice of the
date, time, location. participants, and purpose of all hearings (if applicable), investigative
interviews, or other meetings, with sufficient time for the party to prepare to participate.

Both parties will be given an equal opportunity to inspect and review any evidence
obtained as part of the investigation that is directly related to the allegations raised in the
formal complaint, including the evidence upon which the District does not intend to rely in
reaching a determination regarding responsibility and inculpatory or exculpatory evidence
whether obtained from a party or other source, so that each party can meaningfully respond
to the evidence prior to the conclusion of the investigation. Prior to completion of the
investigative report, the District will send to each party and the party’s advisor, if any, the




evidence subject to inspection and review in an electronic format or a hard copy, and the
parties will have ten (10) school days to submit a written response, which the
investigator(s) will consider prior to completion of the investigative report, as described in
Paragraph 9 of this section.

The investigator(s) will create an investigative report that fairly summarizes relevant
evidence. The investigator(s) will send the investigative report, in an electronic format or
hard copy, to each party and to each party’s advisor for their review and written response at
least ten (10) school days prior to the time a determination regarding responsibility is

10.

made.

The Superintendent will appoint a decision-maker(s), who shall be a District employee or
third-party contractor and who shall be someone other than the Title IX Coordinator or

11

investigator(s). If the complaint filed is against the Superintendent, the Board Chair shall

-}

who shall be someone other than the Title IX Coordinator or investigator(s). The
investigator(s) and the decision-maker(s) shall not discuss the investigation’s facts and/or
determination while the complaint is pending. The decision-maker(s) will afford each
party the opportunity to submit written, relevant questions that a party wants asked of any
party or witness, provide each party with the answers, and allow for additional, limited
follow-up questions from each party. Questions and evidence about the complainant’s
sexual predisposition or prior sexual behavior are not relevant, unless such questions and
evidence about the complainant’s prior sexual behavior are offered to prove that someone
other than the respondent committed the conduct alleged by the complainant, or if the
questions and evidence concern specific incidents of the complainant’s prior sexual
behavior with respect to the respondent and are offered to prove consent. The
decision-maker(s) will explain to the party proposing the questions any decisions to
exclude a question as not relevant.

The decision-maker(s) will issue a written determination regarding responsibility. The
written determination will include: (1) identification of the allegations potentially
constituting sexual harassment; (2) a description of the procedural steps taken from the
receipt of the formal complaint through the determination, including any notifications to
the parties, interviews with parties and witnesses, site visits, methods used to gather other
evidence, and hearings held; (3) findings of fact supporting the determination; (4)
conclusions regarding the application of the District’s code of conduct to the facts; (5) a
statement of, and rationale for, the result as to each allegation, including a determination
regarding responsibility, any disciplinary sanctions the District will impose on the
respondent, and whether remedies designed to restore or preserve equal access to the
District’s education program or activity will be provided by the District to the complainant;
and (6) the District’s procedures and permissible bases for the complainant and respondent
to appeal. If the respondent is found responsible for violating the Board’s Policy regarding
the Prohibition of Sex Discrimination and Sexual Harassment (Students), the written
determination shall indicate whether the respondent engaged in sexual harassment as
defined by the Board’s Policy and these Administrative Regulations. The written
determination will be provided to both parties simultaneously.




12. Student respondents found responsible for violating the Board’s Policy regarding Title IX
of the Education Amendments of 1972-Prohibition of Sex Discrimination and Sexual
Harassment (Students) may be subject to discipline up to and including expulsion.
Employee respondents found responsible for violating the Board’s Policy regarding Title
IX of the Education Amendments of 1972-Prohibition of Sex Discrimination and Sexual
Harassment (Students) may be subject to discipline up to and including termination of
employment. Other respondents may be subject to exclusion from the District’s programs,
activities and/or property. In appropriate circumstances, the District may make a criminal

referral. Remedies will be designed to restore or preserve equal access to the District’s
education programs or activities.

13. After receiving notification of the decision-maker(s)’ decision, or after receiving g

potiﬁf:a_t_io_n tha@__th__e Distr_ict dismisse_c_l__a fomu_il com_Pla}in:[_ or any allegati_o_n_}he_;_rei_n,_ Ezotl'}

CSPOUIIUT dy dvd C CIVCS U appearproce U O

O D1d d d11d
V of this Regulation.

D. Informal Resolution

At any time prior to reaching a determination regarding responsibility, but only after the filing of a
formal complaint, the District may suggest to the parties the possibility of facilitating an informal
resolution process, such as mediation, to resolve the formal complaint without the need for a full

investigation and adjudication. If it is determined that an informal resolution may be appropriate,
the Title IX Coordinator or designee will consult with the parties.

Prior to facilitating an informal resolution to a formal complaint, the Title IX Coordinator or
designee will provide the parties with written notice disclosing the sexual harassment allegations,
the requirements of an informal resolution process, and any consequences from participating in
the informal resolution process. Upon receipt of this document, complainants and respondents
have five (5) school days to determine whether they consent to participation in the informal
resolution. The District must obtain voluntary, written consent to the informal resolution process
from both parties.

Prior to agreeing to any resolution, any party has the right to withdraw from the informal
resolution process and resume the grievance process with respect to the formal complaint. If a
satisfactory resolution is reached through this informal process, the matter will be considered
resolved. If these efforts are unsuccessful, the formal grievance process will continue.

Nothing in this section precludes a student from filing a complaint of retaliation for matters
related to an informal resolution, nor does it preclude either party from filing complaints based on
conduct that is alleged to occur following the District’s facilitation of the informal resolution.

An informal resolution is not permitted to resolve allegations that an employee sexually harassed
a student.

E. Appeal Process




After receiving notification of the decision-maker(s)’ decision, or after receiving notification that
the District dismissed a formal complaint or any allegation therein, both complainant and
respondent have five (5) school days to submit a formal letter of appeal to the Title IX Coordinator
specifying the grounds upon which the appeal is based.

Appeals will be appropriate only in the following circumstances:

« new evidence that was not reasonably available at the time the determination regarding
responsibility or dismissal was made, that could affect the outcome of the matter;

e procedural irregularity that affected the outcome of the matter;

« the Title IX Coordinator, investigator(s), and/or decision-maker(s) had a conflict of interest or
bias for or against complainants or respondents generally or the individual complainant or

responaent thaf affected the outcome of the matter. A conilict of interest or bias does not exist

worked with or disciplined the complainant or respondent.

The District will provide the other party with written notice of such appeal. Both parties will then
have an opportunity to submit a written statement in support of, or challenging, the outcome. Such
written statement must be submitted ten (10) school days after receiving written notice of the
appeal. Upon receipt of an appeal, the Superintendent shall appoint a decision-maker(s) for the
appeal, who shall be someone other than the Title X Coordinator, investigator(s), or initial
decision-maker(s). The decision-maker(s) for the appeal, in their discretion, will determine the
appropriate procedure for the appeal. After considering the parties’ written statements, the
decision-maker(s) for the appeal will provide a written decision. If it is found that one of the bases
for appeal exists, the decision-maker(s) for the appeal will issue an appropriate remedy.

Supportive measures for either or both parties may be continued throughout the appeal process.

F. Dismissal of a Formal Complaint

The Title IX Coordinator shall dismiss any formal complaint that, under Title [X 1) would not

constitute sexual harassment as defined -these-Administrative Regulationsunder Title IX even if
proved, 2) did not occur in the District’s education program or activity, or 3) did not occur against
a person in the United States. Such dismissal does not preclude action under another Board policy.

The District may dismiss a formal complaint or any allegations therein, if at any time during the
investigation or hearing a complainant notifies the Title IX Coordinator in writing that 1) the
complainant would like to withdraw the formal complaint or any allegations therein; 2) the
respondent is no longer enrolled or employed in the District; or 3) specific circumstances prevent
the District from gathering evidence sufficient to reach a determination as to the formal complaint
or allegations therein.

Upon a dismissal, the District will promptly and simultaneously send written notice of the
dismissal and reason(s) therefor to each party. Either party can appeal from the District’s dismissal
of a formal complaint or any allegations therein using the appeals procedure.



In the event a formal complaint is dismissed prior to the issuance of a decision under Title [X, the
Title [X Coordinator shall determine if the allegations of sexual harassment shall proceed through
the grievance procedures identified in Section Il of these Administrative Regulations for claims of
sex discrimination for consideration as to whether the allegations constitute sexual harassment

under Connecticut law.

A dismissal pursuant to this section does not preclude action by the District under the Student
Discipline policy, Code of Conduct for students/or and employees, or any other applicable rule,
policy, and/or collective bargaining agreement.

G. Miscellaneous

1. Any timeframe set forth in these Administrative Regulations may be temporarily delayed

or e_xtended f_or good cause. Good cause may includ_e, l?ut_is not_lilpitezd to, c_ons_id@rations
activity; concurrent activity by the Department of Children and Families; or the need for
language assistance or accommodation of disabilities. If any timeframe is altered on a
showing of good cause, written notice will be provided to each party with the reasons for
the action.

2. If a sexual harassment complaint raises a concern about bullying behavior, the Title [X
Coordinator or designee shall notify the Safe School Climate Specialist or designee who
shall coordinate any bullying investigation with the Title IX Coordinator, to promote the
alignment of any such bullying investigation with the requirements of applicable Board
policies and state law. Additionally, if a sexual harassment complaint raises a concern
about discrimination or harassment on the basis of any other legally protected
classification (such as race, religion, color, national origin, age, or disability), the Title IX
Coordinator or designee shall make a referral to other appropriate personnel within the
District (e.g. Section 504 Coordinator, etc.), so as to ensure that any such investigation
complies with the requirements of policies regarding nondiscrimination.

3. If the sexual harassment complaint results in reasonable cause to suspect or believe that a
child has been abused or neglected, has had a nonaccidental physical injury, or injury
which is at variance with the history given of such injury, is placed at imminent risk of
serious harm, or that a student has been sexually assaulted by a school employee, then, the
person to whom the complaint is given or who receives such information shall report such
matters in accordance with the Board's policy on the Reports of Suspected Child Abuse or
Neglect of Children.

4. Retaliation against any individual who complains pursuant to the Board’s Policy regarding
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972-Prohibition of Sex Discrimination and
Sexual Harassment (Students) and these Administrative Regulations is strictly prohibited.
The District will take actions designed to prevent retaliation as a result of filing a
complaint. Complaints alleging retaliation may be filed according to the grievance
procedures for sex discrimination described herein.

-10 -



5. The District will maintain for a period of seven (7) years records of:

1. Each sexual harassment investigation including any determination regarding
responsibility, any disciplinary sanctions imposed on the respondent, and any
remedies provided to the complainant designed to restore or preserve equal
access to the Board’s education program or activity;

ii.  Any appeal and the result therefrom;

iii.  Any informal resolution and the result therefrom; and

iv.  All material used to train Title IX Coordinators, investigators, decision-makers,
and any person who facilitates an informal resolution process. The Board will
make these training materials publicly available on its website.

If the District has actual knowledge of sexual harassment in an education program or
activity of the Board, and for any report or formal complaint of sexual harassment, the
District will create and maintain for a period of seven (7) years, records of any actions,
 otudi : s ; ] e s——
sexual harassment. The District will document the basis for its conclusion that its response

was not deliberately indifferent, and document that it has taken measures designed to

restore or preserve equal access to the Board’s education program or activity. If the

District does not provide a complainant with supportive measures, then the District will

document the reasons why such a response was not clearly unreasonable in light of the

known circumstances.

SECTION II. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES FOR CLAIMS OF SEX DISCRIMINATION
(OTHER THAN SEXUAL HARASSMENT UNDER TITLE IX)

A. Definitions

¢ Complainant means an individual who is alleged to be the victim of conduct that could
constitute sex discrimination.

¢ Respondent means an individual who has been reported to be the perpetrator of conduct
that could constitute sex discrimination.

B. Reporting Sex Discrimination Other than Sexual Harassment under Title [X

It is the express policy of the Board to encourage victims of sex discrimination to report
such claims. Any person may report sex discrimination (whether or not the person
reporting is the person alleged to be the victim of conduct that could constitute sex
discrimination), in person, by mail, by telephone, or by electronic mail, using the contact
information listed for the Title IX Coordinator. If the District receives notice of sex
discrimination or alleged sex discrimination against a student in the District’s education
program or activity, the Title IX Coordinator or designee will promptly notify the
complainant of the grievance process. The District will treat complainants and respondents
equitably during the grievance process. Sexual harassment is a form of sex discrimination,
and any incident of sexual harassment under Title [X, as defined above, sheuldshall be
handled pursuant to Section I of these Administrative Regulations. Any allegations of

-11 -



sexual harassment under Connecticut law, as defined above, shall be handled pursuant to
this Section II of these Administrative Regulations.

C. Grievance Procedures

As soon as a student feels that he or she has been subjected to sex discrimination other than
sexual harassment_as defined under Title IX (including, without limitation, sexual
harassment under Connecticut law), he/she or his/her parent/legal guardian should make a
written complaint to the Title IX Coordinator or to the building principal, or his/her

designee. The student will be provided a copy of the Board’s policy and Administrative
Regulations and made aware of his or her rights. Preferably, complaints should be filed
within ten (10) school days of the alleged occurrence. Timely reporting of complaints
facilitates the investigation and resolution of such complaints.

+a £t

d

T}IIC LUI[lp}diII{ thu}d btdLC I,
i.  Name of the complainant;
ii.  Date of the complaint;
iii.  Date(s) of the alleged discrimination;
iv.  Name(s) of the discriminator(s);
v.  Location where such discrimination occurred;
vi.  Names of any witness(es) to the discrimination;
vii.  Detailed statement of the circumstances constituting the alleged discrimination;
and
viii.  Remedy requested.

Any student who makes an oral complaint of sex discrimination to any of the
above-mentioned personnel will be provided a copy of these Administrative Regulations
and will be requested to make a written complaint pursuant to the above procedure. In
appropriate circumstances, such as due to the age of the student making the complaint, a
parent or school administrator may be permitted to fill out the form on the student’s behalf.

All complaints are to be forwarded immediately to the building principal or designee
unless that individual is the subject of the complaint, in which case the complaint should be
forwarded directly to the Superintendent of Schools or his/her designee. In addition, a
copy of any complaint filed under this petieyPolicy shall be forwarded to the Title IX
Coordinator. If the complaint being filed is against the Title IX Coordinator, the complaint
should be filed with the Superintendent. If the complaint being filed is against the
Superintendent, the complaint should be filed with the Board Chair, who will then retain an
independent investigator to investigate the matter.

The Title IX Coordinator or designee shall investigate all complaints of sexualsex
discrimination against a student, regardless of whether the conduct occurred on or
off-school grounds. Complaints will be investigated promptly within the timeframes
identified below. Timeframes may be extended as needed given the complexity of the
investigation, availability of individuals with relevant information, and other extenuating
circumstances. The investigation shall be conducted discreetly, maintaining confidentiality
insofar as possible while still conducting an effective and thorough investigation.

=12 -



6. Any student who makes a complaint shall be notified of the District’s intent to investigate
the complaint. In the event the student requests confidentiality or that an investigation not
be conducted, the District will take reasonable steps to investigate and respond to the
complaint to the extent possible, given the request for confidentiality or that the District not
investigate the complaint. If the student insists that his/her personally identifiable
information not be shared with the alleged discriminator(s), the student will be informed
that the District’s ability to investigate and/or take corrective action may be limited.

7. Upon receipt of a sex discrimination complaint, the Title IX Coordinator shall either

admmlstrator to promptly mvestlgate the Complamt The Tltle IX Coordlnator or deSl gnee
shall:

i. offer to meet with the complainant and respondent (if applicable) separately

w1thm ten (10) school days to dISCl.lSS the na’[ure of the compIalnt 1dentlty

relevant mformatmn and obtam any relevant documents the complamant and
respondent may have;

ii. provide the complainant and respondent (if applicable) with a copy of the
Board’s sex discrimination policy and accompanying regulations;

iii. consider whether any interim measures may be appropriate to protect the
complainant or respondent (if applicable), pending the outcome of the
investigation;

iv. conduct an investigation that is adequate, reliable, and impartial. Investigate
the factual basis of the complaint, including, as applicable, conducting
interviews with individuals deemed relevant to the complaint;

v. consider whether alleged sex discrimination has created a hostile school
environment, including consideration of the effects of off-campus conduct on
the school;

vi. communicate the outcome of the investigation in writing to the complainant, to
the respondent, and to any individual properly identified as a party to the
complaint (to the extent permitted by state and federal confidentiality
requirements), within ninety (90) school days from the date the complaint was
received by the Superintendent’s office. The investigator may extend this
deadline for no more than fifteen (15) additional school days if needed to
complete the investigation. The complainant and respondent (if applicable)
shall be notified of such extension. The written notice shall include a finding
whether the complaint was substantiated and if so, shall identify, to the extent
possible, how the District will remedy the discrimination, adhering to the
requirements of state and federal law; and

vii. when sex discrimination has been found, take steps that are reasonably
calculated to end the discrimination, take corrective and/or disciplinary action

e



8.

aimed at preventing the recurrence of the discrimination, as deemed appropriate
by the Superintendent or his/her designee, and take steps to remedy the effects
of the sex discrimination.

If a complaint is made during summer recess, the complaint will be reviewed and
addressed as quickly as possible given the availability of staff and/or other individuals who
may have information relevant to the complaint. If fixed timeframes cannot be met, the
complainant and respondent will receive notice and interim measures may be implemented
as necessary.

If the complainant or respondent (if applicable) is dissatisfied with the findings of the
investigation, he or she may file a written appeal within five (5) school days to the Title IX
Coordinator, or, if he/she conducted the mvest1gat10n to the Supermtendent of Schools

collected by the Title IX Coordmator or designee together w1th the recommended

disposition of the complaint to determine whether the alleged conduct constitutes sex
discrimination. The Title IX Coordinator or Superintendent of Schools may determine if
further action and/or investigation is warranted. After completing this review, the Title [X
Coordinator or Superintendent of Schools shall respond to the complainant and respondent
(if applicable), in writing, within fifteen (15) school days following the receipt of the
written request for review.

D. Miscellaneous

1.

If a sexualsex discrimination complaint raises a concern about bullying behavior, the Title
IX Coordinator shall notify the Safe School Climate Specialist or designee who shall
coordinate any bullying investigation with the Title IX Coordinator, to promote the
alignment of any such bullying investigation with the requirements of applicable Board
policies and state law. Additionally, if a sextalsex discrimination complaint raises a
concern about discrimination or harassment on the basis of any other legally protected
classification (such as race, religion, color, national origin, age, or disability), the Title IX
Coordinator or designee shall make a referral to other appropriate personnel within the
District (e.g. Section 504 Coordinator, etc.), so as to ensure that any such investigation
complies with the requirements of policies regarding nondiscrimination.

If the sexualsex discrimination complaint results in reasonable cause to suspect or believe
that a child has been abused or neglected, has had a nonaccidental physical injury, or injury
which is at variance with the history given of such injury, is placed at imminent risk of
serious harm, or that a student has been sexually assaulted by a school employee, then, the
person to whom the complaint is given or who receives such information shall report such
matters in accordance with the Board's policy on the Reports of Suspected Child Abuse or
Neglect of Children.

Retaliation against any individual who complains pursuant to the Board’s Policy regarding
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972-Prohibition of Sex Discrimination and
Sexual Harassment (Students) and these Administrative Regulations is strictly prohibited.
The District will take actions designed to prevent retaliation as a result of filing a

-14 -



complaint. Complaints alleging retaliation may be filed according to the grievance
procedures for sex discrimination described herein.

Section I1I. Further Reporting

Atany time, a complainant alleging sex discrimination or sexual harassment may also file a formal
complaint with the Office for Civil Rights, Boston Office, U.S. Department of Education, gt
Floor, 5 Post Office Square, Boston, MA 02109-3921 (Telephone (617) 289-0111).

Students may also make a report of sexual harassment and/or sex discrimination to the Connecticut

Commission on Human Rights and Opportunities. 450 Columbus Boulevard, Hartford, CT
06103-1835 (Telephone: 860-514-3400).

Copies of these Administrative Regulations will be distributed to all students.

< 15 =



11/23/2020

-16 -



Appendix A

Sexual Assault: An offense classified as forcible or nonforcible sex offense under the uniform
crime reporting system of the Federal Bureau of Investigation.

Rape—(Except Statutory Rape) The carnal knowledge of a person, without the consent of
the victim, including instances where the victim is incapable of giving consent because of
the person’s age or because of the person’s temporary or permanent mental or physical
incapacity.

Sodomy—Oral or anal sexual intercourse with another person, without the consent of the
victim, including instances where the victim is incapable of giving consent because of the
person’s age or because of the person’s temporary or permanent mental or physical

incapacity.

Sexual Assault With An Object—To use an object or instrument to unlawfully penetrate,
however slightly, the genital or anal opening of the body of another person, without the
consent of the victim, including instances where the victim is incapable of giving consent
because of the person’s age or because of the person’s temporary or permanent mental or
physical incapacity.

Fondling—The touching of the private body parts of another person for the purpose of
sexual gratification without the consent of the victim, including instances where the victim
is incapable of giving consent because of the person’s age or because of the person’s
temporary or permanent mental or physical incapacity.

Incest—Nonforcible sexual intercourse between persons who are related to each other
within the degrees wherein marriage is prohibited by law.

Statutory Rape—Nonforcible sexual intercourse with a person who is under the statutory
age of consent.

Dating Violence: Violence committed by a person who is or has been in a social relationship of a
romantic or intimate nature with the victim; and where the existence of such a relationship shall be
determined based on a consideration of the length of the relationship, the type of relationship, and
the frequency of interaction between the persons involved in the relationship.

Domestic Violence: Includes felony or misdemeanor crimes of violence committed by a current or
former spouse or intimate partner of the victim, by a person with whom the victim shares a child in
common, by a person who is cohabitating with or has cohabitated with the victim as a spouse or
intimate partner, by a person similarly situated to a spouse of the victim under the domestic or
family violence laws of the jurisdiction receiving grant monies, or by any other person against an
adult or youth victim who is protected from that person’s acts under the domestic or family
violence laws of the jurisdiction.

- 1Fm



Stalking: Engaging in a course of conduct directed at a specific person that would cause a
reasonable person to fear for the person’s safety or the safety of others; or suffer substantial
emotional distress.

Affirmative Consent means an active, clear and voluntary agreement by a person to engage in
sexual activity with another person.

For the purposes of an investigation conducted pursuant to these Administrative Regulations, the
following principles shall be applied in determining whether consent for sexual activity was

given and/or sustained:

A. Affirmative consent is the standard used in determining whether consent to engage in
1V1 a8 o] ! 3 3 W a0 i 1l d

person engaged in the sexual activity.

C.  Itisthe responsibility of each person to ensure that he or she has the affirmative consent
of all persons engaged in the sexual activity to engage in the sexual activity and that the
affirmative consent is sustained throughout the sexual activity.

D. It shall not be a valid excuse to an alleged lack of affirmative consent that the
respondent to the alleged violation believed that the complainant consented to the sexual
activity:

(i) because the respondent was intoxicated or reckless or failed to take reasonable
steps to ascertain whether the complainant affirmatively consented, or

(ii) it the respondent knew or should have known that the complainant was unable to
consent because such individual was unconscious, asleep. unable to communicate due to a
mental or physical condition, unable to consent due to the age of the individual or the age
difference between the individual and the respondent, or incapacitated due to the influence
of drugs, alcohol or medication.

E.  The existence of a past or current dating or sexual relationship between the complainant

and the respondent, in and of itself, shall not be determinative of a finding of affirmative
consent.

- 18-



Series 5000
Students

COMPLAINT FORM REGARDING SEXUAL HARASSMENT_UNDER TITLE IX
(STUDENTS)

This complaint form should be used for complaints of sexual harassment as defined on page 1 of the Board'’s
Administrative Regulations Regarding Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 - Prohibition of Sex

Discrimination-and-Sexual-Harassment-(Studenis)
¢

Name of the complainant

__Date of the complaint

Date of the alleged sexual harassment

Name or names of the sexual harasser(s)

Location where such sexual harassment occurred

Name(s) of any witness(es) to the sexual harassment

Detailed statement of the circumstances constituting the alleged sexual harassment

Remedy requested

Signature of Complainant or Title IX Coordinator:

e



Series 5000
Students

COMPLAINT FORM REGARDING SEX DISCRIMINATION (OTHER THAN SEXUAL
HARASSMENT _UNDER TITLE IX) (STUDENTS)

This complaint form should be used for complaints of sex discrimination as defined on page I of the Board’s
Administrative Regulations Regarding Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 - Prohibition of Sex

Iy - . . . I dad
Discrimimationand-Sexual-Harassment-(Students)

Name of the complainant

Date of the complaint . ——— —

Date of the alleged sex discrimination

Name or names of the sex discriminator(s)

Location where such sex discrimination occurred

Name(s) of any witness(es) to the sex discrimination

Detailed statement of the circumstances constituting the alleged sex discrimination

Remedy requested

Signature:

B0



SAMPLE WRITTEN NOTICE FOR FORMAL COMPLAINTS OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT

NOTICE OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT ALLEGATIONS UNDER TITLE X

In accordance with the Board’s Policy and Administrative Regulations Regarding Title IX of the
Education Amendments of 1972 - Prohibition of Sex Discrimination and Sexual Harassment
(Students), a formal complaint of sexual harassment has been filed with the Title IX Coordinator.

Identities of the parties involved, if known:

(Complainant(s))
(Respondent(s))

The conduct allegedly constituting sexual harassment:

The date and the location of the alleged incident, if

known:

The Title IX Coordinator or designee will contact the parties regarding the next step in the
grievance process. Questions can be directed to the Title IX Coordinator:

Neil Sullivan

Assistant Superintendent for Administration
Simsbury Public Schools

933 Hopmeadow Street

Simsbury, CT 06070
nsullivan/@simsburyschools.net

860-651-3361

The respondent is presumed not responsible for the alleged conduct. A determination regarding
responsibility is made at the conclusion of the grievance process.

All parties involved may have an advisor of their choice who may be, but it not required to be, an
attorney. This advisor may inspect and review evidence as permitted by the Board’s
Administrative Regulations Regarding Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 -
Prohibition of Sex Discrimination and Sexual Harassment (Students).

[t is a violation of the Board’s Student Discipline Policy to lie to school officials or otherwise
engage in dishonest behavior, which includes knowingly making false statements or knowingly
submitting false information during the grievance process. Any student who knowingly makes
false statements or knowingly submits false information during this grievance process will be
subject to sanctions pursuant to the Board’s Student Discipline Policy. Any employee who
knowingly makes false statements or knowing submits false information during this grievance
process is subject to discipline, up to and including termination.

A copy of the Board’s Policy and Administrative Regulations Regarding Title IX of the Education
Amendments of 1972 - Prohibition of Sex Discrimination and Sexual Harassment (Students) is
included with this notice.

o



SAMPLE WRITTEN NOTICE FOR THE INFORMAL RESOLUTION PROCESS FOR
SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINTS

NOTICE OF INFORMAL RESOLUTION PROCESS FOR SEXUAL HARASSMENT
COMPLAINTS UNDER TITLE IX

In accordance with the Board’s Policy and Administrative Regulations Regarding Title IX of the
Education Amendments of 1972 - Prohibition of Sex Discrimination and Sexual Harassment
The Board has an informal resolution process to promptly and equitably resolve such complaints
using mediation. This informal resolution process will only be utilized if both the Complainant
and Respondent agree to do so.

The conductallegedly constituting sexual harassment:

If both parties agree to the informal resolution process, it shall preclude the parties from resuming
a formal complaint arising out of the same allegations. However, either party may withdraw from
the informal resolution process at any time before agreeing to a resolution and resume the
grievance process for formal complaints of sexual harassment.

If both parties agree to a resolution, that resolution is binding upon both parties and cannot be
changed or appealed.

The District will maintain for a period of seven (7) years records of the informal resolution process
and results therefrom.

I voluntarily consent to the informal resolution process:

Complainant Date
Parent/Guardian of Complainant Date
Respondent Date
Parent/Guardian of Respondent Date

DG



